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CITY OF JONESVILLE
COUNCIL AGENDA
NOVEMBER 20, 2024 - 6:30 P.M.
JONESVILLE CITY HALL, 265 E. CHICAGO STREET

NOTE: Light refreshments will be served at City Hall beginning at 5:30 p.m. to
recognize our new and departing Council members. All are welcome!

1. CALLTO ORDER / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE / A MOMENT OF SILENCE

2. OATH OF OFFICE
A. Mayor
B. Council

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS
Citizens wanting to address the Council may do so at this time. Persons addressing the Council are
requested to give their name and address for the record when called on by the Mayor, and to observe the
Rules for Speaking before the Jonesville City Council on page 2 of this Agenda.

5. PRESENTATIONS AND RECOGNITIONS
A. Recognition of Service — Delesha Padula

6. COUNCIL MINUTES
A. October 16, 2024 Regular Meeting [Action Item]

7. BOARD AND COMMISSION MINUTES [Action Item]
A. Economic Development Partnership of Hillsdale County — September 12, 2024 (Gray)
B. Region 2 Planning Commission — September 12, 2024 (Penrose)Au
C. Planning Commission — October 9, 2024 (Guyse)
D. LDFA - October 16, 2024 (Arno)

8. PUBLIC HEARING AND SUBSEQUENT COUNCIL ACTION

A. None
9. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
A. Sale of Property — Policy and Procedure [Action Item]
B. Consider Park Land Donation [Action Item]
C. Resolution 2024-16 — Council Rules of Order [RoLL cALL][Action Item]
10. NEW BUSINESS
A. Selection of Mayor Pro Tem [Action Item]
B. Receive June 30, 2024 Audit Report — Bailey, Hodshire & Co. P.C. [RoLL cALL][Action Item]
C. Amendment to Planned Unit Development Agreement — 439 Beck Street [Action Item]
D. Chicago Street Road Diet and Streetscape Plans [Action Item]
E. Board and Commission Appointments [Action Item]
F. Council Committee Appointments [Action Item]
G. Police Patrol Vehicle Purchase [Action Item]
H. Resolution 2024-17 — Reschedule December Board of Review Meeting [RoLL cALL][Action Item]
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I.  Resolution 2024-18 — Membership in the West Michigan Health

Insurance Pool [RoLL cALL][Action Item]
J.  Consider City Logo Recommendation [Action Item]
K. Pay Request No. 4 — West and Adrian Street Improvement Project [Action Item]
L. Contract Modification No. 4 — Maumee Street Construction Project [Action Item]
M. Fiscal Year 2024-25 First Quarter Budget Comparison [Information Item]

11. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

A. Accounts Payable for November totalling $89,187.96 [Action Item]

12. DEPARTMENT REPORTS
A. Public Safety
1. Police — Public Safety Director Lance
2. Fire — Deputy Chief Riggs
B. Water/Wastewater Treatment Plant — Superintendent Mullaly
C. Department of Public Works — Superintendent Crouch
D. Cash Report — Finance Director Spahr

13. ADJOURN

RULES FOR SPEAKING BEFORE THE JONESVILLE CITY COUNCIL (Adopted 09/05/01)

1. Speakers will have one opportunity to address the Council unless the Mayor allows additional opportunities.

2. Remarks shall be limited to 5 minutes per person and will also be limited to matters before the Council, to Council
business or policy, or to issues of community concern or interest that the Council has authority to recommend or act
upon. Comments about actions, inactions or performance of the Council are appropriate. Profane, vulgar or abusive
language will not be tolerated.

3. The Mayor may grant a speaker additional time under unusual circumstances.

4. Council members and staff will not respond to general audience participation. Matters will be referred to the City
Manager who will provide reports at a subsequent meeting/date.

5. The Mayor may call out of order any person who is being disorderly by speaking or otherwise disrupting the
proceedings. Such person shall not be permitted to speak and if he/she continues in a disorderly manner, the Mayor
may declare a recess and/or ask that the person leave or be removed from the meeting.
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To: Jonesville City Council

From: Jeffrey M. Gray, City ManagerM

Date: November 15, 2024

Re: Manager Report and Recommendations — November 20, 2024 Council Meeting

2. Oath of Office — Mayor and Council
Clerk Means will administer the Oath of Office to Mayor Gerry Arno and Council Members Dean Adair,
Andy Penrose, and Annette Sands.

5. A. Recognition of Service — Delesha Padula
Mayor Arno will present a proclamation to Council Member Padula to commemorate more than 6 years
of service to the people of Jonesville.

6. Council Minutes [Action Item]
This item is reserved for action on the minutes of the previous Council regular meeting.

7. Board and Commission Minutes [Action Item]
Board and commission minutes for the prior month are attached. The name of the Council/staff
representative to the board is indicated in parentheses. Following any discussion or questions about the
board minutes, the appropriate action of Council would be a motion to receive and place the minutes on
file. A single motion can be taken up for all of the minutes.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

9.A. Sale of Property — Policy and Procedure [Action Item]
Based on the attached opinion of Attorney Lovinger, staff has prepared the attached ordinance
amendment regarding the purchase, sale, and lease of real and personal property. A policy amendment
regarding the purchase, sale, and lease of real property, as well as a policy regarding disposition of
personal property are attached. The City has an existing policy regarding the acquisition of personal
property. These drafts have been reviewed and recommended by the Budget Committee. An ordinance
amendment requires a public hearing prior to Council action. It is recommended that a public hearing
be set for the December 18 City Council meeting at 6:30 p.m. at the Jonesville City Hall. The ordinance
amendment and policy amendments would be considered at that time. Please refer to the Attorney
Opinion, proposed Ordinance No. 223, Real Property Policy, and Personal Property Policy.

9.B. Consider Park Land Donation [Action Item]
The property survey is complete for the proposed donation of land from the Jerry L. Drake Living Trust
to the City for the purpose of development of a dog park. The donation is for land only; the City would
be responsible for the development of the park. Three actions are necessary in order for the City to
accept the donation:

1. Approval of the request for land division. The subject property is in a platted subdivision and
division of such a lot requires approval of the City Council, pursuant to Section 28-55(i) of the
Code of Ordinances. The donor has submitted a complete application for this purpose.
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2. Acceptance of the Donation Agreement prepared by the donor to grant the land to the City. The
agreement has been reviewed and approved by legal counsel. A motion to accept the
agreement should be conditioned upon a satisfactory title search and include authorization for
the City Manager to execute documents necessary to complete the transfer of property.

3. Authorize the Manager to execute and file a restrictive covenant that would combine the
donated property to Wright Street Park.

Motions may be made for each item or as a single motion for all actions. Please refer to Section 28-55(i),
the Land Division Application, Donation Agreement, and Restrictive Covenant.

9.C. Resolution 2024-16 — Council Rules of Order [RoLL cALL][Action Item]
Council postponed action at the October 16" meeting on the proposed Rules of Order to allow the new
Council to be seated following the election. The rules were developed based on the parliamentary
procedure and meeting training conducted by the Michigan Municipal League at the end of September.
The previous staff write up and Resolution are attached for reference. A roll call vote is necessary to act
on a resolution. Please refer to the staff write up, Resolution 2024-16, and Rules of Order.

NEW BUSINESS

10. A. Selection of Mayor Pro-Tem [Action Item]
Section 3.6 of the City Charter provides that Council shall hold its organizational meeting at the first
regular meeting following the November city election. At that time, Council shall select a Mayor Pro
Tem from its members. The Mayor Pro Tem acts in the place of the Mayor in the event of absence or
disability to the Mayor, and serves as interim Mayor in the event of a vacancy until the Mayor returns or
the vacancy is filled. A motion is necessary to select the Mayor Pro Tem.

10. B. Receive June 30, 2024 Audit Report — Bailey, Hodshire & Co. P.C. [RoLL cALL][Action Item]
Greg Bailey will present the June 30, 2024 Audit Report. The Audit Report is included electronically in
this packet. Please contact staff if you prefer a paper copy.

Per the opinion noted by Bailey, Hodshire & Co. P.C. in the auditor’s report on page 1, “In our opinion,
the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Jonesville, as of June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable,
cash flows thereof for the year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.” Following the presentation, | would recommend a motion to receive
the June 30, 2024 Audit Report, as presented. Please refer to the enclosed Audit Report.

10. C. Amendment to Planned Unit Development Agreement — 439 Beck Street [Action Item]
In June, the City Council approved a Planned Unit Development Agreement with Key Opportunities, Inc.
for the creation of a 57-unit supportive housing development on the former Eagles property located at
439 Beck Street. During the review of the first phase construction plan, the Michigan Department of
Transportation (MDOT) advised that one driveway access would have to be eliminated. Pursuant to
Section 13.08 of the Zoning Ordinance, the mandated change is a major change that requires City
Council approval. The applicant has submitted an amended agreement that has been reviewed by the
City’s legal counsel. Staff recommends that Council approve the amendment to the Planned Unit
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Development and authorize the City Manager and Clerk to execute the amended agreement. Please
refer to the letter request for the amendment and the First Amendment to the Planned Unit
Development Agreement.

10. D. Chicago Street Road Diet and Streetscape Plans [Action Item]
This agenda item is reserved for review and approval of the construction plans for the Chicago Street
road diet and Downtown streetscape improvements. The DDA will be reviewing the plans at their
meeting on Tuesday, November 19%" at 8:30 a.m. and is expected to make a recommendation for action
to Council at that meeting. An excerpted set of the road diet plans is attached. Staff has a 98-page plan
set for the complete paving project that includes the entire length of US-12 within the City limits, as well
as the north let of M-99. The plan set can be forwarded on request. Please refer to the Downtown road
diet plans.

10. E. Board and Commission Appointments [Action Item]
Various Board and Commission appointments are necessary due to the expiration of terms in 2024.

Cemetery Committee: Shea Dow and Charie Pfau — Reappoint to a three-term through December of
2027.

Local Development Finance Authority: Linda Garcia and Rick Schaerer — Reappoint to a four-year term
through November of 2028.

Planning Commission: Kayla Thompson — Appoint to a three-year term through November of 2027, as
recommended by the Planning Commission to fill a board vacancy.

Zoning Board of Appeals: Todd Shroats and David Windle — Reappoint to a three-year term through
November of 2027.

Kayla Thompson's appointment to the Planning Commission will create a vacancy on the Zoning Board
of Appeals; Annette Sand’s election creates a vacancy on the Planning Commission; Mike Kyser’s
relocation outside of the City created a vacancy on the Cemetery Committee. Staff will advertise these
openings and bring recommendations at a future date.

A motion is necessary to make the reappointments to the respective boards.

10. F. Council Committee Appointments [Action Item]
As indicated in the attached memo, Mayor Arno is recommending City Council appointments to various
committees and boards. A motion is necessary to make the appointments. Please refer to the
memorandum from Mayor Arno.

10. G. Police Patrol Vehicle Replacement [Action Item]
As indicated in the attached memorandum, Director of Public Safety Mike Lance has obtained a quote
from Stillwell Ford for a 2025 AWD Ford Interceptor Utility Vehicle to replace the 2019 patrol vehicle.
The quote is 2% ($837) over the MI-Deal price. As a MI-Deal member, the City is eligible for
competitively bid State contract prices for unique equipment. Council has previously authorized
exceeding the MI-Deal price in order to keep the purchase with the local dealer. Upon delivery, the
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vehicle will be upfitted with additional police equipment at a cost that is anticipated to be
approximately $15,000. A motion is necessary to accept the recommendation to waive the purchasing
policy and approve the purchase of the vehicle from Stillwell Ford in the amount of $48,255.08. Please
refer to the memo from Director Lance.

10. H. Resolution 2024-17 — Reschedule December Board of Review Meeting [rRoLL cALL][Action Item]
The City Charter requires that meetings of the Board of Review be set by resolution of the City Council.
It is necessary to reschedule the December meeting. The attached resolution would move the date and
time from Friday, December 20" at 1:00 p.m. to Friday, December 13" at 12:00 p.m. A roll call vote is
necessary to approve a resolution. Please refer to Resolution 2024-17.

10.1 Resolution 2024-18 — Membership in the West Michigan Health

Insurance Pool [RoLL cALL][Action Item]
As has been reported at the last several meetings, a staff committee has been evaluating the merits of
utilizing the West Michigan Health Insurance Pool. The Pool is a consortium of school districts and
municipalities that originated on the west side of the state that has expanded to approximately two-
thirds of Michigan. In addition to providing improved coverage and insurance options to our employees,
the cost is less than renewing our current health insurance offering. These are important factors in
recruitment and retention, as well as in controlling costs.

For the first time, employees would have the option of choosing the health insurance coverage that suits
them best:

e $2,000/54,000 deductible plan, with a 20% employee premium co-share. Annual employer
Health Savings Account contributions would be $1,000 for singles, $2,200 for two-persons, and
$2,550 for families. These contributions would be prorated and deposited on a quarterly basis.

e $3,000/56,000 deductible plan, with no employee premium co-share or employer HSA
contributions.

A resolution of Council is required to authorize membership in the Pool and to name the City Manager
as Trustee and the Finance Director as alternate for the purpose of executing all necessary documents.
A roll call vote is necessary to adopt a resolution. Please refer to Resolution 2024-18.

10.J. Consider City Logo Recommendation [Action Item]
The City Council previously approved adoption of a new tagline, “The Real Deal” and has delegated
development of a City logo to accommodate the line to the Downtown Development Authority. The
DDA will consider logo options at their meeting on November 19%". This agenda item is reserved for
consideration of their recommendation.

10. K. Pay Requests No. 4 — West and Adrian Street Improvement Project [Action Item]
The pay request for work completed to date on the West and Adrian Street project is attached. With
the 10% retainage, Pay Request 4 totals $390,732.20 and largely covers storm sewer, concrete curb, and
sidewalks. A motion is necessary to approve the pay request. Please refer to Pay Request No. 4.
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10. L. Change Modification No. 4 — Maumee Street Construction Project [Action Item]
While completing the final audit of the Maumee Street project, it was discovered that a quantity of
concrete that had been installed in the project had not previously been accounted for or billed, due to a
data entry error. The total increase in cost is $23,020.00. The project is 81.85% funded by grant, leaving
the City’s portion of the error at $4,179.95, which will be billed at a later date by the Michigan
Department of Transportation. A motion is necessary to approve the Contract Modification. Please
refer to Contract Modification No. 4.

10. M. Fiscal Year 2024-25 First Quarter Budget Comparison [Information Item]
The Fiscal Year 2024-25 three-month budget comparison (July 1, 2024-September 30, 2024) is attached.
Where revenues or expenditures exceed the 25% level for the quarter, notes are provided. Overall,
revenues and expenditures are tracking as expected. Notable expenditures include one-time planned
capital expenses, including the West and Adrian Street project, painting curbs and lane markings, as well
as insurance payments. Finance Director Spahr can address any questions or comments at the meeting.
Please refer to the attached Budget Comparison.

Correspondence:
» Michigan Gas Utilities re: Elimination of Gas Light
» Lockwood Continuing Education
» Mahoney Continuing Education
> Mullaly Continuing Education (x2)



**Subject to Council Approval**

JONESVILLE CITY COUNCIL
Minutes of October 16, 2024

A meeting of the Jonesville City Council was held on Wednesday, October 16, 2024 at the
Jonesville City Hall, 265 E. Chicago Street, Jonesville, MI. Mayor Gerry Arno called the
meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. Council members present were: Tim Bowman, Chris Grider,
Brenda Guyse, George Humphries Jr., Delesha Padula, and Andy Penrose.

Also present: Manager Gray, DPW Supt. Crouch, Public Safety Director Lance, Finance
Director Spahr, Attorney Lovinger, WWTP Supt Mullaly, Dean Adair, Lisa Adair, Scott Lucas,
Sharon Lucas, Christine Bowman, Windy Spencer and David Betz.

Delesha Padula led the Pledge of Allegiance and moment of silence.

A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Chris Grider to approve the agenda as
presented. All in favor. Motion carried.

Mayor Arno presented a Proclamation to Tim Bowman to commemorate more than 13 years of
dedicated service to the Jonesville Village Council and City Council, and the people of
Jonesville. Tim was also a positive leader and representative of the Citizenship Awards
Committee, Council Budget Committee, Council Personnel Committee and as Mayor Pro-Tem.
Sincere gratitude was expressed to Tim for his service and best wishes for continued success and
prosperity.

A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Delesha Padula to approve the minutes
of September 18, 2024 - Regular Meeting. All in favor. Motion carried.

George Humphries Jr. made a motion and was supported by Brenda Guyse to approve the
minutes of September 30, 2024 — Special Meeting. All in favor. Motion carried.

A motion was made by George Humphries Jr. and supported by Tim Bowman to receive the
minutes of the Planning Commission — September 11, 2024. All in favor. Motion carried.

The Sale of Property — Policy and Procedure that was discussed at the August 21, 2024 Council
Meeting and directed staff to develop a draft policy for the sale of property. Upon further review
of the City Charter, there are requirements to develop both an ordinance that establishes a dollar
value limitation for purchase, sales, and leases, as well as a separate resolution to adopt
procedures. Staff is gathering samples and intends to present these to Council for consideration
at a later date.

Staff will be meeting with Jerry Drake and his family later this month to discuss the layout of the
property to be donated for a future dog park. The donation agreement will be presented to
Council once the layout is finalized and survey completed.



A motion was made by George Humphries Jr. and supported by Chris Grider to approve
Resolution 2024-15 - Charitable Gaming License. The Michigan Gaming Control Board
requires that nonprofit organizations applying for raffle or other gaming licenses obtain a
resolution from the City Council attesting that the organization is operating as a nonprofit in the
community. Keagan Gimenez, who resides at 404 Wright Street, is requesting approval of the
resolution in association with a gun raffle that her nonprofit, Keagan Kares, plans to conduct
beginning in February 2025. Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Tim Bowman, Chris Grider, Brenda Guyse,
George Humphries Jr., Delesha Padula, Andy Penrose and Gerry Arno. Nays: None. Motion
carried.

Andy Penrose made a motion and was supported by George Humpbhries Jr. to consider the LDFA
recommendation and to appoint Victor Face to the LDFA Board. Mr. Face is the President of
D.H. Roberts Construction and has recently purchased NEFCO which is located in the LDFA
District. All in favor. Motion carried.

A motion was made by Chris Grider and supported by Delesha Padula to approve Traffic Control
Order #2024-02 — Jonesville Lions Club requesting the annual approval of the closure of Park
Street and Wright Street (Between Park Street and Chicago Street) for the trunk-or-treat that
takes place on Halloween. The closure would take place from 4:30 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. on
Thursday, October 31, 2024. All in favor. Motion carried.

A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Delesha Padula to approve the
Resolution 2024-16 — Council Rules of Order. After further discussion, a motion was made by
Chris Grider and supported by Tim Bowman to postpone the action to adopt Resolution 2024-16
- Council Rules of Order until the November 2024 Council Meeting. All in favor. Motion
carried.

Chris Grider made a motion and was supported by George Humphries Jr. to approve the Pay
Requests No. 2 and 3 — West and Adrian Street Improvement Project. Pay Request No. 2 totals
$252,349.41 and largely covers underground utilities on West and Liberty Streets. Pay Request
No. 3, in the amount of $118,800.01 covers costs associated with new copper water services and
plumbing connections in 22 residences in the project area. All in favor. Motion carried.

A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Tim Bowman to approve Change Order
No. 3 — West and Adrian Street Improvement Project. In reviewing field conditions, it has been
determined that it would be favorable to add a short extension of 8-inch water main to the project
in the vicinity of Fayette Street. This extension would connect to the 12-inch main that runs
underneath West Street and allow for a potential future upgrade to the main along Fayette Street
without need to cut into West Street. A gate valve will also be installed in the 12-inch main.
Much of the cost of the change will be offset in reduced main costs that have been realized
elsewhere in the project. All in favor. Motion carried.

Brenda Guyse made a motion and was supported by Andy Penrose to approve the Region 2
Planning Commission Membership annual renewal for 2025 in the amount of $587.52. All in
favor. Motion carried.



The Fiscal Year 2023-24 Year End Budget Comparison was presented to Council for their
review. Overall, actual revenues and expenditures are in line with budgeted figures.

The quarterly statement for the Jonesville Freedom Memorial Fund was presented to Council for
information purposes. The funds were donated by the Jonesville American Legion and deposited
with the Hillsdale County Community Foundation to create a perpetual fund for maintenance and
upkeep of the Memorial. The city is grateful for the partnership of the Legion, who continues to

perform a fair amount of the maintenance.

A motion was made by Andy Penrose and supported by Delesha Padula to approve the Accounts
Payable for October 2024 in the amount of $136,364.25.

Updates were given by Department Heads, Manager Gray and Council.

Mayor Arno adjourned the meeting at 7:23 p.m.

Submitted by:
Cynthia D. Means Gerald E. Arno
Clerk Mayor



Economic Development Partnership of Hillsdale County
Minutes of Regular Meeting
September 12, 2024

Board Members Present: Rick Schaerer, Kelly Hodshire, Kym Blythe, Don Germann, Vicki Morris, Greg
Moore, Sally Clark, Wanda White, Corey Parker, David Mackie, Jeff Gray, Kelly LoPresto, John Condon,
Ron Griffith,

Board Members Absent: Troy Reehl, Tony Samon, Chris Poling, JJ Hodshire, Doug Ingles, Nicole Benson

Staff: Susan Smith, Annette Sands

Call to Order: 8:02 a.m.- Don Germann

* Motion by Kelly Hodshire to approve agenda
Support by John Condon, unanimously approved

* Motion by John Condon to approve July 2024 Minutes
Support by Vicki Morris, unanimously approved

® Motion by Vicki Morris to approve Treasurer’s Report
Support by John Condon, unanimously approved

® Motion by Vicki Morris to approve the Director’s Report
Support by Kelly Hodshire, Unanimously approved

Treasurer’s Report: Consisted of an overview of the EDP’s current fiscal year 2024-2025, income and
expenses. Current net income is $20,360.24, expenditures at $39,896.44 with a net Revenue of negative
$19,536 which is very common this time of year due to capital campaign not in swing yet and
expenditures out for grants. Also an overview of the financial position comparison to current with
August of 2023

Director’s Report: Consisted of an overview of happenings at the EDP.
® Lean Rocket lab fellows Entrepreneurial Program overview
e EDA Grant Close out
* Child Care grant closed out and extension of project, need permanent fix
* MWSE Year-end close out, have entered into the 24-25 agreement
e Attraction Projects

® Annual Dinner update

e Manufacturing Day update

* Visits with Congressman Walberg

e Site Selection magazine Marketing Hillsdale County

® MEDC Investment Request- Manufacturing day and Site Selection marketing

® EDP Community Engagements- CEO Council, CAA, HH, CNB, Key Opp., Region i, Referrals from
Trine University Internships, Hiring Event, WCA Board of Directors, Jonesville Planning
Commission



Round Table Discussion:

® David Mackie- College Hotel project is in its third phase with obtaining an approved
development agreement. It is projected to open in spring 2026, with 158 rooms, conference
space and restaurant. Airport steel is going up for the terminal. New taxi and apron
Aldi’s is moving dirt on property across from Meijer’s, construction will begin soon. Three
Meadows housing tour this week. Ethan donuts, brick fire pizza, Big Pine Brewery have all
opened downtown. Keefer House is moving along. There has been an issue with a shift in
columns at front, but this seems to be all under control. Expected completion is at the end of
the year- 2024

¢ Jeff Gray- MDOT progress on Key opportunity project on Beck Road. West street project-South-
Adrian and Maumee will be under reconstructions with water main upgrade. Storm gutter by
golf course. Early November is expected completion.

* Klein Tool & D.H. Roberts are working in joint partnership on environmental issues to open
funding opportunities, things are moving. EGLE has determined that the contained
environmental issues are not in river. Lots of work behind the scenes. Filling all vacancies on
the police department. First time ever, Jonesville has someone in the Police academy.

® Greg Moore- Consumers is expanding renewable energy program. Sustainability goals match up
to 100% with renewables. Have been providing quite a few tours of the Crescent Wind Turbine
project.

® Vicki Morris- Board of realtors has advised of 139 homes for sale, with median selling at $100k-
$200k the interest rate is down a bit.

* Purchase rehab programs with Century Bank is down 20%, Bank will loan to allow funds for
renovations.

* Don Germann- CNB is moving into the Portage and Lansing areas. Seeing a lot of Home Equity
loans, Debt consolidation are financial distress with senior population. Boats and car loans are
still strong.

* Sally Clark- Going Pro Cycle | opens in October. MWSE has many specialty grants, but not
applicable with Hillsdale companies due to the grant focus.

* John Condon- Hillsdale Terminal is continuing to grow. Gaining a lot of work from Canada.

* Wanda White- Work has picked up on machining. Robotic & PLCE still busy. Levi has been
assisting other companies to solve their issues.

® Rick Schaerer- unfortunately, things are not picking up in the packaging industry.

* Kelly Hodshire- very busy, still working seven days a week. Other CPA’s are stepping away from
auditing and downsizing.

Adjournment: 8:57 a.m.- Rick Schaerer
Respectfully submitted,
Annette Sands



Region 2

Serving Hillsdale, Jackson & Lenawee Counties

MEETING MINUTES

Region 2 Planning Commission — Full Commission
Lenawee District Library

4459 W. U.S. 223

Adrian, Ml 49221

Thursday, September 12, 2024
. Call to Order — Chair Witt called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. A quorum was present.

Attendance:
Adams Gosselin Lance Shotwell
Andrews Gould, J. Linnabary Sigers
Beach v" Gould, L. Miller v Snell
Beecher v Grabert v Minnick, Jr. v Southworth

v'  Beeker Greene Mitchell Sutherland
Blythe Greenleaf Montrief Swartzlander
Bush Griffin Navarro Teriaco

v Bussell Gross Nickel v Tillotson
Calender Havican Norman Todd
Collins Hawkins O’Dowd v" VanDoren
Cornish Hawley v" Overton VanWinkle
Cousino Heath Penrose Votzke

v' Cure Herlein Peters Walz
David v Jancek Pfeifer, C. Webb
Dillon v Johnson Pfeifer, R. Weir
Donaldson Kastel Pixley Williams
Dow Keener v Planeta Willis

v Duckham Keller Root Wilson
Everidge Koehn Saenz v Witt
Gallagher Kuiper Scoville
Gentner Lammers Shaw

Key: v =present
Staff Present: Brett Gatz, Jacob Hurt, Jill Liogghio, Alissa Starling

Others Present: Lynne Punnett — Housing Lenawee

Il.  Approval of the September 12, 2024 Agenda — The motion was made by Comm. Duckham,
supported by Comm. Jancek, to approve the September 12, 2024 agenda as presented. The
motion carried unanimously.
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lll. Public Comment — Chair Witt requested public comment. Lynn Punnett from Housing Le-
nawee spoke about the Housing Solutions Conference 2024 in Adrian on November 13, 2024.

IV. Approval of Full Commission Meeting Minutes for July 11, 2024 — The motion was made
by Comm. Duckham, supported by Comm. Jancek, to approve the Full Commission meeting
minutes of July 11, 2024 as submitted. The motion carried unanimously.

V. Receipt/Approval of Treasurer’s Reports of July 31 and August 31, 2024 — The motion
was made by Comm. Grabert, supported by Comm. Jancek, to receive the July 31 and August
31, 2024 Treasurer’s Reports as presented and approve payment of the July 31 and August
31, 2024 submitted bills. The motion carried unanimously.

VI. Staff Progress Report for July and August 2024 — The July and August 2024 staff progress
reports were included in the agenda packet. Mr. Hurt presented highlights from the staff pro-
gress report for the months of July and August.

VIl. MPO/JACTS Update — The MPO/JACTS Update was provided in the packet and Mr. Gatz
provided highlights from that report.

VIIl. Approval of Executive Director Travel to Bentonville, Arkansas — The motion was made
by Comm. Jancek, supported by Comm. Minnick, Jr., to approve Executive Director travel to
Bentonville, Arkansas. The motion carried unanimously.

IX. Approval the FY 2025 Planning Work Program — The motion was made by Comm. Duck-
ham, supported by Comm. Jancek, to approve the FY 2025 Planning Work Program. The mo-
tion carried unanimously.

X. Appointment of the FY 2025 R2PC Personnel and Finance Committee — The motion was
made by Comm. Minnick, Jr., supported by Comm. Duckham to keep the current slate of the
Personnel and Finance Committee, with the addition of Bruce Grabert. The FY 2025 Person-
nel and Finance Committee members are: Bruce Grabert, Pete Jancek, Mike Overton, Ralph
Tillotson, and Dale Witt.

XI. Other Business — None.
XIl. Public Comment / Commissioners’ Comments — None.

Xlll. Adjournment — There being no further business, Chair Witt adjourned the meeting at 2:18
p.m.

Dale Witt
Chair

09/12/2024 Full Commission Meeting 2
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CITY OF JONESVILLE
PLANNING COMMISSION
Minutes of October 9, 2024

A City of Jonesville Planning Commission meeting was held on Wednesday, October 9, 2024 at
the Jonesville City Hall, 265 E Chicago Street, Jonesville, MI. Chair Christine Bowman called
the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.

Present: Christine Bowman, Jim Ackerson, Brenda Guyse, Ken Koopmans, Annette Sands, and
Ryan Scholfield.

Absent: One Vacancy

Also Present: Jeff Gray, Charles Crouch, Rick Jenkins and via Zoom Rick Stout (Fleis &
Vandenbrink)

Annette Sands led the Pledge of Allegiance and the moment of silence.

Councilman Tim Bowman thanked the Planning Commission for the great work they have
provided Jonesville over the last 13 years. Bowman stated he has enjoyed working together with
them.

A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Annette Sands to approve the agenda as
presented. All in favor. Absent: One Vacancy. Motion carried.

Annette Sands made a motion and was supported by Ryan Scholfield to approve the minutes
from September 11, 2024 with one correction being made. All in favor. Absent: One Vacancy.
Motion carried.

Manager Gray provided information regarding the Site Plan Review request from MT
Engineering/Key Opportunities for construction of Phase 1 of the Planned Unit Development at
439 Beck Street. Action on this request for the first phase of construction of the supportive
housing development at the former Eagles site was postponed at the August 20" regular meeting
to allow the applicant to address site access issues raised by the Michigan Department of
Transportation. A draft plan is in a form acceptable to MDOT, an amended plan will be
submitted to update the Planned Unit Development. No action is recommended at this time,
pending updates to the plan.

A motion was made by Annette Sands and supported by Brenda Guyse to move Agenda Item
7.A. prior to 6.B. All in favor. Absent: One Vacancy. Motion carried.

A motion was made by Brenda Guyse and supported by Annette Sands to approve the Site Plan
Review request from Stoll Metal Sales, LLC, for construction of an 8,100 square foot building
addition on the property located at 590 Olds Street. Approval is based on the plans prepared by
Richard J. Jenkins, P.E., dated September 25, 2024, with a finding that the plan meets the
Review Standards listed in Section 15.05 of the Zoning Ordinance. Richard Jenkins spoke
briefly to the Planning Commission. All in favor. Absent: One Vacancy. Motion carried.



The Wright Street Park Concept Plan was presented to Council virtually by Rick Stout with Fleis
and Vanderbrink. Mr. Stout provided four (4) concept plans for Wright Street Park that were
thoroughly discussed amongst the Planning Commission. Comments/changes/suggestions of the
concept plans are to be submitted to Manager Gray by October 23, 2024. These comments will
then be submitted to Mr. Stout. Discussion will continue with the new concept plans that are put
together by Mr. Stout from the comments that are received at the November 13, 2024 Planning
Commission Meeting.

Manager Gray provided updates.

The next meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, November 13, 2024 at 7:00 p.m.
The meeting was adjourned at 8:18 p.m.

Submitted by,

Cynthia D. Means
Clerk



City of Jonesville
Local Development Finance Authority
Minutes of October 16, 2024

Present: Gerry Arno, Erik Weatherwax, Steve Harding, Steve Lanius, Jim Parker, Gerry
Arno and Rick Schaerer.

Absent: Scott Campbell, Linda Garcia and one vacancy.
Also Present: Jeff Gray, Sue Smith (EDP) and Victor Face.

Chairman Schaerer called the meeting to order at the Jonesville City Hall, 265 E Chicago Street,
Jonesville, MI at 8:30 a.m.

Jim Parker made a motion and was supported by Erik Weatherwax to approve the agenda as
presented. All in favor. Absent: Scott Campbell and Linda Garcia. Motion carried.

A motion was made by Steve Harding and supported by Steve Lanius to approve the minutes of
June 19, 2024. All in favor. Absent: Scott Campbell and Linda Garcia. Motion carried.

Erik Weatherwax made a motion and was supported by Jim Parker to accept the financial report
through July 31, 2024. All in favor. Absent: Scott Campbell and Linda Garcia. Motion carried.

A motion was made by Steve Harding and supported by Steve Lanius to recommend that City
Council appoint Victor Face to the LDFA Board for a four-year term ending in November of
2028. All in favor. Absent: Scott Campbell and Linda Garcia. Motion carried.

Sue Smith, Executive Director of Economic Development Partnership of Hillsdale County,
provided updates regarding Lean Rocket Lab Fellows Program, Annua EDP Dinner,
Manufacturing Day, Triple Diamond Plastics, Visits with Congressman Walberg, and Robotic
and Health Care Sector Collaboratives.

Manager Gray and LDFA members provided updates.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:51 a.m.

Submitted by,

Cynthia D. Means
Clerk



LAW OFFICE

JOHN P. LOVINGER* LOVINGER & THOMPSON P.C. THOMAS L. THOMPSON
*ALSO ADMITTED IN ARIZONA 91 SoutH BroaD STREET, P.O. Box 358
HiLLSDALE, MICHIGAN 49242

OF COUNSEL TO: OFFICE 517.437.7210

MARCOUX, ALLEN, BOWER, 517.439.1421
NICHOLS & KENDALL, P.C.

September 18, 2024

Mr. Jeffrey M. Gray, City Manager
City of Jonesville, Michigan

116 W. Chicago Street

Jonesville, Michigan 49250

Re: City Policy Development Regarding Sale of City Real Property.
Dear Mr. Gray:

You have requested that | provide you with a legal opinion regarding the
development of a Policy regarding Sale of City real property. The development of this
policy has arisen at the request of the City Budget Committee as a result of recent
consideration of the sale of a parcel of real property now owned by the City.

The City Charter contains the following provisions that potentially are applicable
to the development of this policy:
Sec. 13.2. - Purchase, sale and lease of property.

The council shall establish by resolution the procedures for the purchase,
sale or lease of real property for the city for the direction of the city manager.
The ordinance shall provide a dollar limit within which purchases, sales or
leases of real property may be made witrout the necessity of securing
competitive bids, and the dollar limit within wh ch purchases or leases may be
made without the necessity of prior council approval.

Sec. 13.3. - Limitations on contractual power.

(a) No contract shall be made with any person, firm or corporation in
default to the city.

(b) The council's power to sell or disposz= of any real property shall be
conditioned on the conducting of a public hearing thereon and
receiving five (5) affirmative council votes and the requisite
electoral approval if required by law.

Sec. 13.5. - Restriction on powers to sell or lease property.

(a) The city may not sell any park or cemetery or any part thereof unless
the sale is permitted by an affirmative majority of five (5) persons on
council and a majority of the city electors voting on the proposed sale.

(b) The transfer or assignment of any agreement or contract for the renting



Mr. Jeffrey M. Gray, City Manager

City of Jonesville, Michigan

September 18, 2024

Page 2
or leasing of public property may be made only upon approval of the
council, but approval of such transfer shall not be subject to referendum.

A review of these provisions has given rise to certain questions because of
the use of the term resolution and ordinance within the Charter language.
Specifically Sec. 13.2 indicates that the City Council shall establish by resolution
the procedures for purchase, sale, or lease of real property for the city for the
direction of the City Manager. Sec. 13.2 further provides that an ordinance shall
provide a dollar limit within which purchases, sales, and leases of real property
may be made without the necessity of securing competitive bids and the dollar limit
within which purchases and leases may be made without the necessity of prior
council approval. The advisable interpretation o° this Charter language dictates
that the City Council adopt an Ordinance that provides a dollar limit within which
purchases sales and leases of real property may be made without the necessity of
securing competitive bids and the dollar limit within which purchases and leases
may be made without the necessity of prior council approval. The Charter
language dictates that these limitations be contained in an Ordinance as opposed
to a resolution. The Ordinance may contain language that authorizes the City
Council to adopt resolutions regarding procedures for the purchase, sale, or
lease of real property for the city for the direction of the City Manager. These
procedures may be amended from time to timre at the discretion of the City
Council. However, the dollar limitations set forth in the Ordinance may only be
amended by amendment of the Ordinance.

The other quoted Charter provisions address requirements for public
hearing and vote of a super majority of the City Council in connection with the
sale of city owned real property. If the real property proposed to be sold is either
a park or a cemetery, not only is a public hearing and city council approval by
super majority necessary, but also the matter must be referred to citizens for a
vote to approve such a sale. A sale of non-park or non-cemetery property does
not require a referendum.

As we discussed during our recent telephone conference regarding this
matter, the advisable course of action would be to develop an Ordinance that
sets forth dollar limitations for purchases, sales, and leases that must obtain prior
council approval and for such Ordinance to authorize the City Council by
resolution to adopt procedures in connection with purchases, sales, and leases
of property. As mentioned previously, the dollar limitations set forth in the
Ordinance may not be amended by City Council resolution, but will require
amendment of the Ordinance.
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If you have additional questions with regard to this matter after reviewing these
materials, please contact me.

JPL/ch
Cc: Jonesville City Manager



CITY OF JONESVILLE
ORDINANCE NO. 223

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE V, OF THE CODE OF
ORDINANCES TO ADDRESS THE PURCHASE, SALE, AND LEASE OF
PROPERTY.

THE CITY OF JONESVILLE ORDAINS:

Section 1. Chapter 2, Article V of the Code of Ordinances, Finance, shall be amended to
read as follows:

ARTICLE V. FINANCE
DIVISION 1. GENERALLY
Secs. 2-121 - 2-140. Reserved.
DIVISION 2. PURCHASES, SALES, AND LEASES
Sec. 2-140. Manager as purchasing agent.

The city manager shall act as purchasing agent for all city offices and departments. The
manager may delegate some or all of the duties as purchasing agent to another officer or employee
provided that such delegation shall not relieve the manager of the responsibility of the proper
conduct of those duties.

Sec. 2-141. Purchase of personal property and contractual services.

Purchases of personal property such as supplies, materials, or equipment, or of contractual
services shall be made in accordance with a policy established by resolution of the city council, as
well as the requirements of Chapter 13 of the Charter.

Sec. 2-142. Inspection and acceptance of materials.

The responsibility for the inspection and acceptance of all materials, supplies, and equipment
shall rest with the ordering department.

Sec. 2-143. Disposition of personal property.

Surplus or excess personal property shall be disposed of in accordance with a policy
established by resolution of the city council.
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Sec 2-144. Purchase, sale, and lease of real property.

The city council shall establish the procedures for the purchase, sale, or lease of real
property by resolution in accordance with the requirements of Chapter 13 of the Charter. The
purchase, sale, or lease of real property shall not occur without competitive bids, except in the
following circumstances:

(1) The city council may acquire real property for governmental purposes by purchase
or lease within the negotiated fair market value, or by acceptance of a donation of
real property at no or nominal cost. Acquisition shall require the affirmative vote
of the city council. Acquisition by eminent domain shall be in accordance with the
appropriate sections of the Charter and state statute.

2) The sale of city owned real property conducted pursuant to the Declaration of
Restrictions for the Jonesville Industrial Park.

3) City owned real property that is zoned primarily for residential use may be sold to
the first person/entity offering to purchase the property at a price which the city
council determines acceptable given market forces. Said property shall be
publicly advertised for sale, in accordance with the policy of the city council.

4) City owned real property that does not have the size, access, or topography to
accommodate development may be sold to owners of adjacent properties where
the development potential and/or value of the adjoining property will be
increased. Said sale may be by direct solicitation to an adjoining owner or by an
unsolicited offer to the city.

4) Sale or lease of a city owned real property intended to accomplish a stated
economic or community development objective may be completed by a process
determined by the city council that is consistent with established policy.

Sec. 2-145. Limitations on powers to sell or lease property.

(a) City owned real property shall not be sold or disposed of without the city council first
holding a public hearing nor without five (5) affirmative council votes, in accordance with
Chapter 13 of the Charter.

(b) The city may not sell any park or cemetery or any part thereof unless the sale is
permitted by the affirmative vote of five (5) persons on council and a majority of city electors
voting on the proposed sale.

(c) The establishment, transfer, or assignment of any renting or leasing of city owned
real property may be made only upon the approval of the city council, but said approval shall not

be subject to referendum.

Section 2. Sec. 2-71. Purchasing Responsibilities, is hereby repealed in its entirety.
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Section 3. Publication and Effective Date

This ordinance shall be in force and effect seven (7) days after its publication in a newspaper of
general circulation within the City.

YEAS:
NAYS:
ABSENT:

ORDINANCE DECLARED ADOPTED ON , 202

Gerald E. Arno, Mayor

Cynthia D. Means, Clerk

CERTIFICATION

I, Cynthia D. Means, being the Clerk of the City of Jonesville, do hereby certify that the foregoing
is a true and correct copy of the City of Jonesville Ordinance No. 223, passed on the _____ day of
, 202__. Further, I certify I caused the same to be published in a newspaper of
general circulation within fifteen (15) days after adoption by the City Council of the City of
Jonesville, County of Hillsdale and State of Michigan.

IN WITNESS WHEREOQOF, I have hereunto set my hand and seal this day of
,202_ .

Cynthia D. Means, Clerk
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CITY OF JONESVILLE POLICY

— TG 1828 Wiy

Policy: Purchase, Sale, and Lease of Real Property

Adopted by City Council:

Effective Date:

The City of Jonesville Policy Manual is hereby amended to add the following section.

PURCHASE, SALE, AND LEASE OF REAL PROPERTY

1. Purpose

Section 13.2 of the City Charter provides that the City Council shall establish by resolution
the procedures for the purchase, sale, or lease of real property for the City for the direction of
the City Manager. This policy is intended to implement the requirements of the City Charter
and Section 2-144 of the Code of Ordinances by describing the process, conditions, and
methods for acquiring and disposing of real property.

2. Definitions

As used in this policy, the following words or phrases are given the meanings below:

A. Non-buildable property. Property that does not have the size, access, or topography to
accommodate development, and whose conditions are unlikely to be overcome with a
zoning variance.

B. Non-residential property. Property that is zoned primarily for uses other than solely
residential use.

C. Residential property. Property zoned primarily for residential use.

D. Significant property. Property reasonably expected to be of high value in implementing
a documented community development objective or a future development need in the
City, as determined by the City Council.

E. Surplus property. Any property not needed or required to be used, nor anticipated to be
needed or required, for a governmental purpose. This includes the land, buildings,
structures, and fixtures on said property.

3. Preparation of Surplus Property for Disposal

The City Manager or his or her designee shall take the following steps to prepare a surplus
property for disposition. These actions shall be done in coordination with relevant
departments, city boards, and/or stakeholders and will include a review of community
development plans and strategies.
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A. Establish and clearly define the goals, if any, to be achieved through disposition of the
property under consideration. These may include, but not be limited to the following:

1) Placing the subject property on the tax roll;

2) Accomplishing a particular economically beneficial end use;
3) Creation of jobs;

4) Improving the development potential of the subject property;
5) Elimination of blight.

B. Determine fair market value, taking into consideration the goals to be accomplished.
Fair market value will be determined by one of the following methodologies:

1) A written determination of fair market value provided by the City Assessor;
2) Property appraisal;
3) Broker price opinion;
4) Market analysis or similar method.
C. Establish criteria for sale, if any, which may include, but not be limited to:
1) Sources of financing;
2) Type of use or uses, including restrictions on future use;
3) Compatibility with neighboring properties;
4) Quality of workmanship;
5) Extent of development experience required;
6) Design or architectural standards;
7) Timing and scheduling;

8) Consistency with City master plan and/or development objectives.

4. Disposal of Surplus Property

When City owned real property is determined to be surplus property, it may be made
available for sale according to this section, based on the property’s classification and
determination by the City Council.

A. Non-Residential and Significant Property may be disposed by the following methods:

1) Listing and Sale. Notice of sale shall be posted on the City’s website and may be
published on the Multiple Listing Service (MLS) and/or advertised via other
media or other targeted solicitations, as determined by the City. Subject to other
provisions of this Policy, upon approval of the City Council, the property may be
sold to the first person/entity offering to purchase the property at a price which is
acceptable and whose proposal meets the established goals and criteria, given
market conditions.
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2) Request for Proposals. A detailed Request for Proposals (RFP) may be prepared
by the City Manager or his or her designee, in collaboration with all necessary
stakeholders. The RFP shall be posted on the City’s website and may be
published and/or advertised via other media or targeted solicitations. The RFP
shall contain the asking price (if determined appropriate), criteria for disposal, and
other conditions of sale. Timely proposals shall be reviewed by the City Manager
and other stakeholders, as determined necessary. After review, a recommendation
shall be presented to the City Council.

B. Residential Property may be disposed by the following method:
1) Listing and Sale. As described in Section 4.A.(1), above.
C. Non-Buildable Property may be disposed by the following method:

1) Where it is determined that the development potential and/or the value of an
adjoining property will be increased or enhanced, the non-buildable property may
be sold by direct solicitation to an adjoining owner or by receipt of an
unsolicited offer to the City, subject to approval by the City Council.

5. Lease of Surplus Property

The City Council may, at its sole discretion, offer surplus property for lease to interested
parties. Such arrangements are typically regarded to be temporary in nature until conditions
are appropriate for sale or redevelopment of the subject property. Determination of fair
market value is not required prior to offering a surplus property for lease, unless deemed
necessary by the City Council. Lease agreements may be offered through advertisement of a
solicitation of sealed competitive bids. The solicitation shall be posted on the City’s website
and may be published and/or advertised via other media or targeted solicitations.

Where there are particular goals or objectives to be accomplished with lease of surplus
property, the City may elect to utilize an RFP as described in Section 4.A.(2), above instead
of competitive bids.

Approval of a lease shall be subject to the affirmative vote of the City Council.

This section shall not be construed to obligate the City Council to utilize a competitive
process for the issuance of license, easement, or other similar agreements that may be
deemed necessary or advantageous to facilitate the use or development of City or private

property.

6. General Requirements for the Purchase or Lease of Surplus Property

A. Any entity proposing to purchase or lease surplus from the City that it:

1) Does not have any property previously purchased from the City for which a
proposed project has not yet commenced or that would be considered
substantially behind the schedule provided to the City for the project.
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2) Is not in default or delinquent on any obligations, whether financial,
programmatic, or performative related to and contract that it has with the City of
Jonesville.

3) Has no documented adverse history of building, housing, rental certification, or
code violations.

In all cases involving the development or a proposal for a project, the following
minimum criteria are required to be described or established in a proposal to be eligible
to acquire or lease surplus property from the City.

1) Description of the proposed project, including timeline and current cost estimates.

2) Evidence of financial capability to complete the proposed acquisition and
property development.

3) Document a level of experience or capability to successfully complete the
proposed project, or support from an organization that will assist in the
completion of the proposed project.

7. Acquisition of Property

A.

The City may acquire real property for governmental purposes by purchase or lease.
The City Manager or his or her designee shall negotiate the terms for a purchase or lease
for presentation to the City Council.

The City may accept the donation of real property offered at no cost or nominal cost.

Acquisition of property and/or execution of a lease to use property shall require the
affirmative vote of the City Council.

8. Agreements, Requirements, and Method of Conveyance

The City shall prepare agreements required to implement this policy (i.e. Option Agreements,
Development Agreements, Purchase Agreements, Lease Agreements, Deed Restrictions, etc.)

A.

B.

Development Agreements shall provide for project construction and completion
timelines that are appropriate to the scope of the project and agreeable to the parties.

Residential property shall be conveyed via quitclaim deed except where specific
financing sources require either a warranty of covenant deed, in which case the buyer
must bear any costs associated with delivering the instrument.

Non-residential and significant property may be conveyed via quitclaim, covenant, or
warranty deed as determined appropriate by the City Attorney and approved by City
Council.

9. City Council Approval

In all cases, the City Council shall be the final authority as to the purchase or disposition of
City property.

Page 4 of 5



10.

A. Surplus property shall not be sold or disposed of without the City Council first holding a
public hearing nor without five (5) affirmative council votes, in accordance with Chapter
13 of the Charter.

B. The City may not sell any park or cemetery or any part thereof unless the sale is
permitted by the affirmative vote of five (5) persons on the City Council and a majority
of City electors voting on the proposed sale.

C. The establishment, transfer, or assignment of any renting or leasing of City owned real
property may be made only upon the approval of the City Council, but said approval
shall not be subject to referendum.

D. The purchase of property or approval of a lease to use property requires the affirmative
vote of the City Council.

Waivers

The City Council may, in its sole discretion, waive the application of this policy in whole or
part, with respect to any particular property if it determines such waiver to be in the public
interest. City Council’s approval of the sale of property which does not comply with the
terms of this policy shall be considered City Council’s waiver of this policy with respect to
such property only.
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CITY OF JONESVILLE POLICY

— TG 1828 Wiy

Policy: Sale of Personal Property

Adopted by City Council:

Effective Date:

The City of Jonesville Policy Manual is hereby amended to add the following section.

SALE OF PERSONAL PROPERTY

1. Purpose

This policy is intended to ensure the protection of City assets and to provide guidelines for
the proper disposal of City owned personal property that has been found to be obsolete or
surplus.

2. Identification of Surplus and Obsolete Property

Where a Department Head has identified property within his or her department that is
obsolete or surplus, they shall estimate the fair market value in “as is, where is” condition.
Property shall not be deemed obsolete or surplus until it is confirmed that it is also unusable
in other City departments. The Department Head shall indicate his or her recommendation
for disposal to the City Manager.

3. Disposition of Personal Property

A. Methods of disposal. Personal property may be disposed of by any of the following
methods determined by the City Manager to be in the best interest of the City:

1) Trade-in for other equipment;
2) Publicly advertised sealed bid sale conducted by the City;

3) Auction conducted by an auction house, governmental auction, online auction, or
other publicly advertised event;

4) Sale as scrap;
5) Transfer to another government or nonprofit organization;
6) Recycling, salvaging, or junking.

B. Substantial value. Disposal of any item of personal property with an estimated value of
$10,000 or more shall require approval by the City Council.

C. Nominal value. Personal property which a reasonable person would find to be at the
end of its useful life and that the cost of disposition exceeds any sales value may be sold,
donated, or discarded as deemed appropriate by the City Manager.
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D. Trash. Personal property that a reasonable person would find has no value may be
discarded as trash by any City employee.

. Conflict of Interest

City officials and staff are prohibited from acquiring City personal property if they
participated in the disposition process.

. Waivers

A. The City Council may, in its sole discretion, waive the application of this policy in
whole or part, with respect to any particular item of personal property if it determines
such waiver to be in the public interest. City Council’s approval of the sale of property
which does not comply with the terms of this policy shall be considered City Council’s
waiver of this policy with respect to such property only.

B. The City Council may, in its sole discretion, waive the requirements of this policy and
allow the sale of personal property to City employees that was issued to them for the
performance of their job duties. Said equipment may include computing devices wiped
of City software, data, and peripherals; apparel; law enforcement firearms; and similar
property that has no other use to the City or cannot be issued to another employee.
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CITY OF JONESVILLE
LAND DIVISION APPLICATION

You MUST answer all questions and include all attachments or this will be returned to you.
Bring or mail to:

City of Jonesville Assessor 517-849-2104

265 E. Chicago St.
Jonesville, MI. 49250

Approval of a division of land is required before it is sold, when the new parcel is less than 40 acres and not just a

property line adjustment (102 e&f). This form is designed to comply with 8108 and 8109 of the Michigan Land
Division Act, formally the Subdivision Control Act, PA 288 of 1967, as amended (particularly PA 591 of 1996 and PA
87 of 1997. MCL 560 et seq.) Approval of a division is not a determination that the resulting parcels comply with
other ordinances or regulations.

4.

4A.

4B.

5A.

5B.

LOCATION of parent parcel to be split:

Address: __Vacant Land - Parkwood Drive

Parent Parcel Number:30-21-2 4 7-0 01 -01 7-___ -__ -3 (formerly 21-247-009 & 21-247-001-015)
Legal Description of Parent Parcel (attach extra sheets as needed): _ See Attached

PROPERTY OWNER INFORMATION:

Name: Jerry L. Drake Living Trust Phone; (517 ) 212-6951
Address: 404 Road Name: Parkwood Dr
City: __ Jonesville State: M| Zip Code: 49250 -

APPLICANT INFORMATION (if not the property owner):
Contact Person’s Name:  Jerry L. Drake - Owner

Business Name: Phone ( )
Address: Road Name:
City: State: Zip Code: -

PROPOSAL: Describe the division(s) being proposed:
A. Number of new Parcels: __One
B. Intended use (residential, commercial, etc.): Donation to City Tor Dog Fark
C. The division of the parcel provides access to an existing public road by: (check one)

X Each new division has frontage on an existing public road. (See proposed restrictive covenant)
A new public road, proposed road name:

(Road name cannot duplicate an existing road name.)
A new private road or easement, proposed road name:

(Road name cannot duplicate an existing road name.)
A recorded easement (driveway). (Cannot service more than one potential site.)

Write here, or attach, a legal description of the proposed new road, easement or shared driveway (attach extra
sheets if needed:

Write here, or attach, a legal description for each proposed new parcel (attach extra sheets if needed):
See attached

FUTURE DIVISIONS that might be allowed but not included in this application? __ Per Land Division Act

The number of future divisions being transferred from the parent parcel to another parcel? __None

Identify the other parcel: _N/A

(See section 109(2) of the Statute. Make sure your deed includes both statements as required in section 109(3)
and 109(4) of the Statute.)
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6. DEVELOPMENT SITE LIMITS: Check each that represents a condition which exists on the parent parcel. Any part of the |
parcel:
N/A  is ina DNR-designated critical sand dune area. |
N/A  isriparian or littoral (it is a river or lake front parcel).
N/A_is affected by a Lake Michigan High Risk Erosion setback.
N/A  includes a wetland.
N/A_ includes a beach.
N/A is within a flood plain.
N/A_  includes slopes more than twenty five percent (a 1:4 pitch or 14° angle) or steeper.
N/A s on muck soils or soils known to have severe limitations for on site sewage systems.
N/A  is known or suspected to have an abandoned well, underground storage tank or contaminated soils.

7 AT)T(ACHMENTS: (all attachments must be included). Letter each attachment as s'pown hlere.

A. 1. A survey, sealed by a professional surveyor at a scale of 1"= (insert scale), of
proposed division(s) of parent parcel; OR
2. A map/drawing drawn to scale of (insert scale), or proposed division(s) of parent

parcel of the 30 day time limit is waved: Signature:
The survey or map must show:
€)) current boundaries (as of March 31, 1997), and

) all previous divisions made after March 31, 1997 (indicate when made or none), and
€)) the proposed division(s), and

)] dimensions of the proposed divisions, and

5) existing and proposed road/easement right-of-way, and

6) easements for public utilities from each parcel to existing public utility facilities, and
@) any existing improvements (buildings, wells, septic systems, driveways, etc.)
¢)) any of the features checked in question number 6.
B. A soil evaluation or septic system permit for each proposed parcel prepared by the Health
Department, or each proposed parcel is serviced by a public sewer system.
C. An evaluation/indication of approval will occur, or a well permit for potable water for each proposed
parcel prepared by the Health Department, or each proposed parcel is serviced by a public water System.
N/A  D.Indication of approval, or permit from County Road Commission, MDOT, or respective city/village
street administrator, for each proposed new road, easement or shared driveway.
N/A E. A copy of any transferred division rights (§109(4) of the Act) in the parent parcel.
X F. A fee of $00.00.
N/A  G. Other (please list)

N/A
N/A

8. IMPROVEMENTS Describe any existing improvements (buildings, well, septic, etc.) which are on the parent parcel or
indicate none (attach extra sheets in needed). None

9. AFFIDAVIT and permission for municipal, county and state officials to enter the property for inspections:

T agree the statements made above are true, and if found not to be true this application and any approval will be void. Further, I agree to comply
with the conditions and regulations provided with this parent parcel division. Further, 1 agree to give permission for officials of the municipality, county
and the State of Michigan to enter the property where this parcel division is proposed for purposes of mspection to verify that the information on the
application is correct at a time mutually agreed with the applicant. Finally, I understand this is only a parcel division which conveys only certain rights
under the applicable local land division ordinance, the local zoning ordinance, and the State Land Division Act) formerly the Subdivision Control Act, P.A.
288 of 1967, as amended (particularly by P.A. 591 of 1996), MCL 560.101 et.seq.), and does not include any representation or conveyance of rights in any
other statute, building code, zoning ordinance, deed restriction or other property rights.

Finally even if this division is approved, I understand zoning, local ordinance and State Acts change from time to time, and if changed the
divisions made here must comply with the new requirements (apply for division approval again) unless deeds, land contracts, leases or surveys representing
the approved division are recorded with the Register of Deeds or the division is built upon before the changes to laws are made.

Property Owner’s Signature %A"k ﬁ . ﬁWA Date: &)/ -7 oo ’Z?ﬂé k
DO NOT WRITE BELOW THIS LINE:

REVIEWER’S ACTION: TOTAL $ Receipt #
Approved: Conditions, if any:
Denied: Reasons (cite §):

Signature and date:

Parcel Land Division Page 2 of 2



ATTACHMENT A - PROPOSED LAND DIVISION
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PROPOSED PARCEL "A" DESCRIPTION TO BE ATTACHED TO TAX PARCEL 21-280-001-066:

PART OF LOT 32, "BRIAR HILLS NO. 2 SUBDIVISION" AS RECORDED IN LIBER 10, PAGE 74-75, HILLSDALE
COUNTY, MICHIGAN RECORDS, ALSO PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 33, T55-R3W, VILLAGE

OF JONESVILLE, HILLSDALE COUNTY, MICHIGAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 32; THENCE N03°51'34"E ALONG THE WEST LINE
OF SAID LOT 32, A DISTANCE OF 177.98 FEET; THENCE S78°12'11"E PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH LINE OF
SAID LOT 32, A DISTANCE OF 240.00 FEET; THENCE S03°51'34"W, PARALLEL WITH SAID WEST LINE 177.98
FEET TO SAID SOUTH LINE; THENCE N78°12'11"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 240.00 FEET TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.97 NET ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, BEING SUBJECT TO ANY

RECORDED OR UNRECORDED EASEMENTS OF BURDEN OR BENEFIT.

BEARINGS BASED ON SOUTH LINE OF LOT 32 BEING N78°12'11"W PER SHERIDAN SURVEYING CO.
SURVEY, JOB # 2024.5287, DATED 8-21-24.

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

| HEREBY STATE THAT WE HAVE SURVEYED AND MAPPED THE LAND ABOVE PLATTED AND/OR
DESCRIBED ON NOVEMBER 5, 2024 AND THAT ALL OF THE REQUIREMENTS OF P.A. 132 OF 1970 HAVE
BEEN MET.

THE RELATIVE POSITIONAL PRECISION OF THE CORNERS IDENTIFIED FOR THIS SURVEY AND SHOWN ON
THE MAP ARE WITHIN LIMITS ACCEPTED BY THE PRACTICE OF PROFESSIONAL SURVEYING.

JO
IR OBISON@FVENG.C

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

Filing Requirement of Act No. 132
of the Public Acts of 1970, as Amended

DATE: 11/5/2024
F&V PROJECT NO.

855860

PA 132 SURVEY
SECTION 33, T58-R3W
HILLSDALE CO, MICHIGAN

[

FLEISEVANDENBRINK

DESIGN. BUILD. OPERATE.

2960 Lucerne Drive SE
Grand Rapids, Ml 49546
P: 616.977.1000

F: 616.977.1005

e WP Y S
CITY OF JONESVILLE
21-247-001-009




ATTACHMENT B - PARENT PARCEL
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Parcel B - Description as Surveyed: o [ egend
A parcel of land in the Southeast 1/4 of Section 33, Town 5 South, Range 3 West,
Village of Jonesville, Hilisdale County, Michigan, being a part of Lots 29 & 32 of ® —— found Plat Monument
Briar Hills No. 2 Subdivision (Liber 10 of Plats, Pages 74 and 75), and more ® —— Found lron
particularly described as:
—— S C
Beginning at the Northeast Corner of said Lot 29, thence; thence ® e,,i)?;bggzﬁ/é,, &

S00°03'33"W 300.00 feet to the Southeast Corner of said Lot 29; thence
$89°17'56"E 419.93 feet (recorded as 420.00 feet) to the Northeast Corner of said
Lot 32; thence S00°03'52"E 301.45 feet (recorded as 301.88 feet) to the
Southwest Corner of Lot 20 (Briar Hills Liber 7 of Plats, Page 24); thence
S87°52'55"W 195,04 feet; thence S$S61°44'45"W 35048 feet; thence
S08°35'17"E 60.62 feet; thence N78°12'11"W 457.66 feet to the Southwest Corner
of said Lot 32; thence N03°51'34"E 177.98 feet (recorded as 177.91 feet); thence
NOO°14'48"E  220.73 feet; thence S89°51'21"E 129.45 feet; thence
N29°26'14"W 61.22 feet to the Southwest Corner of said Lot 29; thence
S89°17'59"E 115.06 feet to the West Line of the East 295 feet of said
Lot 29; thence NO0°0333"E along said West Lline, 150.00 feet; thence
$89°17'59”E 98.95 feet; thence N00°03'33"E 150.00 feet to the South Line of
Parkwood Drive; thence $89°17'59”E along said drive, 196.07 feet to the Point of
Beginning. Containing 10.63 acres, more or less.

Subject to all easements and restrictions, if any.

(R) —— Record
(M) —— Measured

o

LY

/ _
JOB #: 2024.5287 _%%Q’L SHERIDAN SURVEYING co.( ) { § { /4 /Zi
_ (ALY A4

ék/ aded

DRAWN : RST 910 Fifth Street Michigan Center, Mi 48254
DATE : B8-21—24 517—764-0440 sheridansurveying.com PROFESS!ON‘AL SURVEYOR #29245
SCALE : 1" = 150’ | HEREBY CERTIFY TO THE PARTY NAMED HEREON, THAT | HAVE SURVEYED THE LINE(S) OR PARCEL

OF LAND AS ABOVE SHOWN OR DESCRIBED ON 8—20—24 AND THAT THE RELATIVE POSITIONAL

PAGE : 2 OF 2 PRECISION IS WITHIN LIMITS ACCEPTED BY THE PRACTICE OF PROFESSIONAL SURVEYING.




ATTACHMENT C — REMNANT PARCEL LEGAL DESCRIPTION
1

DATE: NOVEMBER 4, 2024

DESCRIPTION OF LAND REMAINING FOR TAX PARCEL #30-21-247-001-009

DESCRIPTION OF LAND REMAINING

PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 33, TOWN 5 SOUTH, RANGE 3 WEST, VILLAGE OF
JONESVILLE, HILLSDALE COUNTY, MICHIGAN AND BEING A PART OF LOTS 29 AND 32 OF BRIAR
HILLS NO. 2 SUBDIVISION, AS RECORDED IN LIBER 10 OF PLATS, PAGES 74 AND 75, HILLSDALE
COUNTY, MICHIGAN RECORDS, DESCRIBED AS:

BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 29; THENCE S00°03’33” 300.00 FEET TO THE
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 29; THENCE S89°17°56°E 419.93 FEET (RECORDED AS 420.00
FEET) TO THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 32; THENCE S00°03’52"E 301.65 FEET
(RECORDED AS 301.88 FEET) TO THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF LOT 20 OF BRIAR HILLS
SUBDIVISION, AS RECORDED IN LIBER 7 OF PLATS, PAGE 24, HILLSDALE COUNTY, MICHIGAN
RECORDS; THENCE S87°52°'55"W 195.04 FEET; THENCE S61°44°'45"W 350.48 FEET; THENCE
S08°35°177E 60.62 FEET; THENCE N78°12'11"W 217.66 FEET; THENCE NO03°51'34’E 177.98 FEET;
THENCE N78°12’11"W 240.00 FEET; THENCE N00°14’48"E 220.73 FEET; THENCE S89°17°59"E 20.73
FEET; THENCE S89°51'21"E 129.45 FEET; THENCE N29°26'14"W 61.22 FEET TO THE SOUTHWEST
CORNER OF SAID LOT 29; THENCE S89°17°59"E 115.06 FEET TO THE WEST LINE OF THE EAST 295
FEET OF SAID LOT 29; THENCE N00°03'33”’E, ALONG SAID WEST LINE, 150.00 FEET; THENCE
S89°17°59”E 98.95 FEET; THENCE N00°03'33"E 150.00 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF PARKWOOD
DRIVE; THENCE S89°17°59"E, ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE, 196.07 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,
CONTAINING 9.65 NET ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, BEING SUBJECT TO ANY RECORDED OR
UNRECORDED EASEMENTS OF BENEFIT OR BURDEN.

NOTES:
1. BEARINGS BASED ON SOUTH LINE OF LOT 32 BEING N78°12'11"W PER SHERIDAN
SURVEYING CO. SURVEY, JOB # 2024.5287, DATED 8-21-24.

2960 Lucerne Drive SE, Suite 100
Grand Rapids, MI 49546
P:616.977.1000

F: 616.977.1005

www.fveng.com
855860_LandRemainingDescription (003)



DONATION AGREEMENT

This Donation Agreement (the “Agreement”) for certain real property located at 404 Parkwood
Dr. Jonesville, MI 49250 (“Property”), is effective upon the Effective Date (defined below),
between the Owner, whose address is 404 Parkwood Dr. Jonesville, MI 49250 (“Donor’) and City
of Jonesville, MI whose address is 265 E. Chicago St. Jonesville, MI 49250 (“Donee”). It is agreed
that upon the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement the Donor shall donate and convey
all of its rights and interests in, and the Donee shall accept and be the successor to all such rights
and interests in, the real property identified and described herein. Donor and Donee may each be
referred to as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”.

RECITALS

In consideration of the mutual covenants of the parties contained in this Agreement, Donor does
grant to Donee title to the Property and Donee accepts from the Donor title to the Property under
the following terms and conditions:

A. Donor is offering the City of Jonesville 0.97 acres of property as described below to be utilized
as a Community Dog Park. Parties agree that the City of Jonesville will absorb all costs of
surveying and the development of said park;

B. Donor requests a plaque with Donor’s information to be visible;

C. Donor acquired the Property identified on Exhibit A by a deed in lieu of foreclosure;

D. Donor did not originally construct any of the improvements forming part of the Property;

E. Donor has not occupied the Property for its own use;

F. Due to Donor’s lack of familiarity with the Property, Donor is unwilling to make any
representations or warranties whatsoever regarding the Property and Donor is only willing to
grant Donee the property on an “as is, where is”’ and “with all faults” basis; and

G. Donee has been given a full and complete opportunity to conduct its own investigation as to
any matter, fact or issue that might influence Donee’s decision to accept the Property from
Donor. Accordingly, Donee is willing to accept the Property from Donor without any
representations or warranties whatsoever regarding the Property and on an “as is, where is”

and “with all faults” basis.

AGREEMENT

1. DONATION.

1.1 Effective Date. The date this Agreement is signed by both Parties shall be the
effective date of the Agreement.




1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

Purchase Price. The purchase price for the Property shall be ONE and 00/100
Dollars ($1.00) (the “Purchase Price™). However, the amount payable by the Donee
to Donor for the purposes of this transaction as the consideration to be paid shall be
ZERO and 00/100 Dollars ($0.00) (the “Total Adjusted Sales Price™). The term
Total Adjusted Sales Price has been determined by the Donor and

Donee taking certain agreed upon sums and applying such sums to the following
formula: (a) the Purchase Price less (b) Donor adjustments of -$1.00.

Transfer. Donor agrees to donate the Property to Donee and Donee agrees to accept
the Property from Donor on the terms and conditions set forth herein. In
consideration of Donor's transfer of the Property to Donee, Donee shall perform all
of Donee's obligations hereunder including but not limited to the release set forth
in Section 2.2 of this Agreement.

Deed. Title shall be transferred on the Closing Date via a Deed (which Deed may
be known as a Special Warranty, Limited Warranty, Quit Claim or Bargain and Sale
Deed). Any reference to the term “Deed” herein shall be construed to refer to such
form of Deed. Donor shall be responsible for recording the Deed following the
Closing Date. The Deed to be delivered on the Closing Date shall be a Deed in
which the Grantor therein grants and conveys to the Grantee therein only that title
to, or interest and rights in, the Property granted therein that the Grantor may have
at the time of the grant, and shall contain no warranty, guaranty or indemnification
of any kind, express or implied.

Taxes and Utilities. The Parties agree that the Donor will only be responsible for
the following expenses due as of the Closing Date: municipal water and sewer
charges, utility charges, real estate taxes and assessments, common area charges,
condominium or planned unit development or similar community assessments, co-
operative fees, maintenance fees, and rents, if any. The Property taxes will be
prorated based on an estimate of actual taxes from the previous year on the Property.
All prorations will be based upon a 30-day month and all such prorations shall be
final. Donor will not be responsible for any amounts due, paid or to be paid after
closing, including but not limited to, any taxes, penalties or interest assessed or due
as a result of retroactive, postponed or additional taxes resulting from any change
in use of, or construction on, or improvement to the Property, or an adjustment in
the appraised value of the Property.

Risk of Loss. In the event of fire, destruction, or other casualty loss to the Property
after the Effective Date, and prior to the Closing Date, (a) Donor may, at its sole
discretion, repair or restore the Property, or (b) either Party may terminate the
Agreement. If Donor elects to repair or restore the Property, then Donor may, in its
sole discretion, limit the amount to be expended. If Donor elects not to repair or



1.7

2.

2.1

restore the Property, Donee shall either (a) acquire the Property in its AS-IS
condition at the time of such acquisition, or (b) terminate the Agreement.

Eminent Domain. In the event that the Donor’s interest in the Property, or any
part thereof, shall have been taken by eminent domain, or shall be in the process of
being taken on or before the Closing Date, either Party may terminate the
Agreement and neither Party shall have any further rights or liabilities hereunder.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS AND RELEASE.

DONEE'S ACKNOWLEDGMENTS. DONEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT
DONEE IS ACCEPTING THE PROPERTY SOLELY IN RELIANCE ON
DONEE'S OWN INVESTIGATION, AND THE PROPERTY IS IN "AS IS,
WHERE IS" CONDITION WITH ALL FAULTS AND DEFECTS, LATENT
OR OTHERWISE. DONEE EXPRESSLY ACKNOWLEDGES THAT, IN
CONSIDERATION OF THE AGREEMENT OF DONOR HEREIN, AND
EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED HEREIN, DONOR MAKES AND
HAS MADE NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, OR ARISING BY OPERATION OF LAW, INCLUDING, BUT
NOT LIMITED TO, ANY WARRANTY AS TO CONDITION,
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR USE OR
PURPOSE, WITH RESPECT TO THE PROPERTY OR ANY MATTER
RELATED THERETO, OR (WITHOUT LIMITATION) TO ANY OF THE
FOLLOWING MATTERS:

(@) Soils, Etc. Soils, seismic, hydrological, geological and topographical
conditions and configurations.

(b) Artifacts. Archeological, prehistoric and historic artifacts, remains and relics.

(c) Endangered Species. Endangered plant, animal and insect species.

(d) Hazardous Materials. Hazardous Materials and other environmental
conditions, including without limitation, lead-based paint, asbestos and mold.

(¢) Physical Defects. Physical and mechanical defects in or on the Property,
including without limitation, the plumbing, heating, air conditioning and
electrical systems and the roof, floor, ceilings, walls and other internal
structural components of any buildings or improvements.

() Land and Floor Area. The area of the land and the square footage contained in
any buildings or improvements.

(g) Utilities. Schools, Etc. Availability of adequate utilities, water, schools, public
access, and fire and police protection.

3



22

()

(M)

@

(k)

O

(m)

(n)

" Assessment Districts. The status and nature of any assessment districts and the

amount of any assessment liability.

Planning and Zoning. Present, past or future conformity of the Property with
planning, building, zoning, subdivision and development statutes, ordinances,
regulations and permits, the general plan and the specific plan.

Development Fees. The character and amount of any fee, charge or other
consideration which must be paid by Donee to develop the Property.

Title. The condition of title to the Property, including but not limited to the
existence of any easement, license or encroachment whether or not a matter of
public record, and whether or not visible upon inspection of such Property.

Taxes. The status of any general or special real property taxes or assessments
or personal property taxes or any other taxes and assessments applicable to the

Property.

Owner's Association. The financial condition of any owner's association,
including, without limitation, the adequacy of any reserves held by any owner's
association.

Other Matters. Any other matter relating to the Property or to the development
or operation of the Property, including, but not limited to, value, feasibility,
cost, governmental permissions or entitlements, marketability, investment
return and compliance of the Property, its operation or use with any laws, rules,
ordinances, regulations or codes of any government or other body.

RELEASE.

(a)

RELEASE. DONEE FULLY RELEASES AND DISCHARGES DONOR
FROM AND RELINQUISHES ALL RIGHTS, CLAIMS AND ACTIONS
THAT DONEE MAY HAVE OR ACQUIRE AGAINST DONOR WHICH
ARISE OUT OF OR ARE IN ANY WAY CONNECTED WITH THE
CONDITION OF THE PROPERTY, INCLUDING WITHOUT
LIMITATION (A) ANY MATTER SET FORTH IN SECTION 2.1
ABOVE, (B) THE PRESENCE OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS ON,
UNDER OR ABOUT ANY PROPERTY (INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO ANY

UNDISCOVERED HAZARDOUS MATERIALS LOCATED BENEATH
THE SURFACE OF THE PROPERTY) AND (C) VIOLATIONS OF ANY
HAZARDOUS MATERIALS LAWS PERTAINING TO THE
PROPERTY OR THE ACTIVITIES THEREON. THIS RELEASE



APPLIES TO ALL DESCRIBED RIGHTS, CLAIMS AND ACTIONS,
WHETHER KNOWN OR UNKNOWN, FORESEEN OR
UNFORESEEN, PRESENT OR FUTURE.

(b) MEANING. FOR PURPOSES OF THIS SECTION22, ALL
REFERENCES TO "DONOR" SHALL INCLUDE: (A) DONOR'S
PARENT, SUBSIDIARY AND AFFILIATE CORPORATIONS, (B)
DONOR'S DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, SHAREHOLDERS,
EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS, AND (C) THE HEIRS, SUCCESSORS,
PERSONAL REPRESENTATIVES AND ASSIGNS OF DONOR'S
DIRECTORS, OFFICERS, SHAREHOLDERS, EMPLOYEES AND
AGENTS.

(c) EFFECTIVENESS. THE PROVISIONS OF THIS SECTION 2 SHALL BE
EFFECTIVE AS OF THE CLOSING DATE AND SHALL SURVIVE THE
CLOSING DATE OR TERMINATION OF THIS AGREEMENT.

3. GENERAL PROVISIONS.

31

3.2

33

34

35

3.6

Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the
parties concerning the Donation and sale of the property, and supersedes all prior
written or oral agreements between the parties to this Agreement. No addition to or
modification of any term or provision shall be effective unless in writing, signed by
both Donor and Donee.

Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties.

Partial Invalidity. If any portion of this Agreement shall be declared by any court
of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, that portion shall be
deemed severed from this Agreement and the remaining parts shall remain in full
force as fully as though the invalid, illegal or unenforceable portion had never been
part of this Agreement.

Termination. Prior to the Closing Date, this Agreement may be terminated by
Donor at any time for any or no reason by written notice to Donee.

Governing Law. The parties intend and agree that this Agreement shall be governed
by and construed in accordance with the laws of the state in which the Property is
located.

No Third Parties Benefits. No person other than Donor and Donee, and their
permitted successors and assigns, shall have any right of action under this Agreement.




3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

Waivers. No waiver by either party of any provision shall be deemed a waiver of any
other provision or of any subsequent breach by either Party of the same or any other
provision.

Captions. The captions and Section numbers of this Agreement are for convenience
and in no way define or limit the scope or intent of such Sections of this Agreement.

Counterparts. To facilitate execution, this Agreement may be executed in as many
counterparts as may be convenient or required. It shall not be necessary that the
signature of, or on behalf of, each party, or that the signature of all persons required
to bind any party, appear on each counterpart. All counterparts shall collectively
constitute a single instrument. It shall not be necessary in making proof of this
instrument to produce or account for more than a single counterpart containing the
respective signatures of, or on behalf of, each of the parties hereto. Any signature
page to any counterpart may be detached from such counterpart without impairing

the legal effect of the signatures thereon and thereafter attached to another
counterpart identical thereto except having attached to it additional signature pages.

No Presumption. All the parties hereto and their attorneys have had full opportunity
to review and participate in the drafting of the final form of this Agreement and all
documents attached as exhibits. Accordingly, such documents shall be construed
without regard to any presumption or other rule of construction whereby any
ambiguities within this Agreement would be construed or interpreted against the
party causing the document to be drafted.

Notices. Any notices or other communication required or permitted under this
Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be personally delivered, or sent by certified
or registered United States mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, or by
overnight delivery by a reputable courier to the address of the party set forth in this
Section, or sent by fax to the Fax number of the party set forth in this Section, or sent
by e-mail to the party set for in this Section. Such notice or communication shall be
deemed given if sent by personal delivery or by overnight courier, when delivered in
person, if sent by fax, when evidence of successful transmission by telecopier has
been received by sender or, in the case of mailed notice, forty-eight (48) hours
following deposit in the United States mail. Notice of change of address shall be
given by written notice in the manner detailed in this Section.

If to the Donee: City of Jonesville
Address:
265 Chicago St.
Jonesville, MI 49250

If to the Donor: Owner
404 Parkwood Dr
Jonesville MI 49250

6



Joint and Several. If more than one person or entity has executed this Agreement as Donee, the
obligations of all such persons or entities hereunder shall be joint and several.

DONEE:

City of Jonesville, MI

Signature:

Print Name:
Title:
Date:

DONOR:
OWNER

Signature: (%‘Uﬁ]’ Z, W S
e SRR L. DRAE
Title: O] ERIZY

Date: NCDV‘ 1%’ %Qkf-
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PROPOSED PARCEL "A" DESCRIPTION TO BE ATTACHED TO TAX PARCEL 21-280-001-066:

PART OF LOT 32, "BRIAR HILLS NO. 2 SUBDIVISION" AS RECORDED IN LIBER 10, PAGE 74-75, HILLSDALE
COUNTY, MICHIGAN RECORDS, ALSO PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 33, T55-R3W, VILLAGE
OF JONESVILLE, HILLSDALE COUNTY, MICHIGAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 32; THENCE N03°51'34"E ALONG THE WEST LINE
OF SAID LOT 32, A DISTANCE OF 177.98 FEET; THENCE S78°12'11"E PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH LINE OF
SAID LOT 32, A DISTANCE OF 240.00 FEET; THENCE S03°51'34"W, PARALLEL WITH SAID WEST LINE 177.98
FEET TO SAID SOUTH LINE; THENCE N78°12'11"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 240.00 FEET TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.97 NET ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, BEING SUBJECT TO ANY
RECORDED OR UNRECORDED EASEMENTS OF BURDEN OR BENEFIT.

BEARINGS BASED ON SOUTH LINE OF LOT 32 BEING N78°12'11"W PER SHERIDAN SURVEYING CO.
SURVEY, JOB # 2024.5287, DATED 8-21-24.

SURVEYOR'S STATEMENT

| HEREBY STATE THAT WE HAVE SURVEYED AND MAPPED THE LAND ABOVE PLATTED AND/OR
DESCRIBED ON NOVEMBER 5, 2024 AND THAT ALL OF THE REQUIREMENTS OF P.A. 132 OF 1970 HAVE
BEEN MET.

THE RELATIVE POSITIONAL PRECISION OF THE CORNERS IDENTIFIED FOR THIS SURVEY AND SHOWN ON
THE MAP ARE WITHIN LIMITS ACCEPTED BY THE PRACTICE OF PROFESSIONAL SURVEYING.

57202

p A . DATE
DBISON@FVENG.’ -

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEY

Filing Requirement of Act No. 132
of the Public Acts of 1970, as Amended

Lo

DATE: 11/5/2024
F&V PROJECT NO.
855860

PA 132 SURVEY
SECTION 33, T58-R3W
HILLSDALE CO, MICHIGAN

FLEISEQVANDENBRINK

DESIGN. BUILD. OPERATE.

2960 Lucerne Drive SE
Grand Rapids, M1 49546
P: 616.977.1000

F: 616.977.1005

T ST
CITY OF JONESVILLE
21-247-001-009




EXHIBIT “B”
Closing Representative Addendum

DONEE: City of Jonesville, M1
DATE: 9/18/2024

Donee may use counsel or closing agent of choice as representation at the closing subject to Donor’s approval of such
counsel or closing agent.

Please select ONE of the following options for closing:
Donee selects Donor’s Preferred Title Company to act as the closing agent and the Title Company.
OR
[IDonee proposes the following Representative. If the Donee chooses not to use the Donor’s Preferred Title
Company to act as the closing agent and the Title Company, then the following section will need to be completed.
Please note this box MUST be selected to qualify for Donor to pay Closing Costs in the amount of the lesser of
(a) $2,500.00 or (b) the actual amount of Closing Costs.

Please provide contact information for Donee’s chosen Title Company:

Company:

Company Mailing Address:

Contact Name:

Phone:

Email:

Should Donee’s counsel or closing agent information change prior to closing, Donee shall promptly notify Donor of such
change in writing, which representation shall be subject to Donor’s approval.

Dated:

Donee Name (printed) Donee (signature)

Dated:

Donor Name (printed) Donor (signature)



RESTRICTIVE COVENANT

The City of Jonesville, a Michigan municipal corporation, of 265 E. Chicago Street,
Jonesville, Ml 49250, hereinafter referred to as “Owner”, hereby executes this
Restrictive Covenant based upon the following:

WHEREAS Owner is the fee title holders of the following parcel of real property:

See attached “Exhibit A”
Hereinafter referred to as “The Subject Property”; and

WHEREAS The Subject Property, which is commonly described as Wright Street Park,
416 Wright Street is located in the City of Jonesuville, Michigan; and

WHEREAS the Subject Property is composed of two separate tax parcels, one of which
is within a platted subdivision known as Briar Hills No. 2 Subdivision, according to the
recorded plat thereof, as recorded in Liber 10 of Plats, Page 74-75, Hillsdale County
Records, hereinafter referred to as “Donated Land” and the second parcel which is
immediately adjacent to this parcel, but is partially located in a platted subdivision
known as Supervisor’s Plat No. 1 of Jonesville and the remainder is not located within
either platted subdivision, hereinafter referred to as “Park Parcel”; and

WHEREAS at present, the subject property has a municipal park located upon the Park
Parcel and the owner desires to accept the Donated Land to develop a dog park; and

WHEREAS the Donated Land does not comply with the zoning ordinances now in effect
in the city of Jonesville, Michigan, which is the municipality which has jurisdiction over
land use development of the subject property; and

WHEREAS the noncompliance with zoning is a result of the fact that the Donated Land
lacks frontage on a public street; and

WHEREAS the city of Jonesville under applicable statutes lacks the authority to alter or
amend boundary lines of platted properties; and

WHEREAS the proposed development of the property would be acceptable if the
Owner of the Subject Property would covenant and agree that the two parcels that
comprise the Subject Property shall remain under common ownership, meaning that no
portion or parcel of the Subject Property may be conveyed by the Owner or their
successors in title without conveying the remaining parcel; and

WHEREAS the owner wishes to create a restrictive covenant with regard to the Subject
Property that provides for the continued common ownership of all of the parcels that
comprise the Subject Property, which will allow the proposed development of the
property and eliminate the street frontage issue that currently exists on the platted
parcel.

NOW THEREFORE, in light of the premises set forth above, the Owner of the Subject
Property, hereby covenants as follows:

IT IS COVENANTED AND AGREED that the Subject Property, which is more



particularly described in the attached “Exhibit A”, which is Incorporated herein by
specific reference do for their heirs, successors, transferees and assigns covenant that
the Subject Property, which is comprised of two separate tax parcels, shall be held and
maintained under common ownership, meaning that no portion or parcel of the Subject
Property may be sold or conveyed separate from the remaining parcels of the Subject
Property.

IT IS FUTHER COVENANTED AND AGREED that this covenant of common ownership
shall run with the Subject Property and shall be binding upon all two separate parcels
and shall restrict the division or transfer of said parcels separate from the others and
shall be binding on the heirs, successors and transferees of the Owners.

IT IS FUTHER COVENANTED AND AGREED and acknowledged that the execution of
this Restrictive Covenant shall not be construed as an alteration of the boundary lines of
any of the subject properties, including but not limited to the parcels that are located
within Briar Hills No. 2 Subdivision or Supervisor’s Plat No. 1 of Jonesville, which are
platted subdivisions.

The Owner of the Subject Property executes of this Restrictive Covenant as their free
act and deed.

Dated this day of November, 2024.

Signed By:
THE CITY OF JONESVILLE

Jeffrey M. Gray Cynthia D. Means
Its: City Manager Its: Clerk

STATE OF MICHIGAN )
)SS:
COUNTY OF HILLSDALE )

The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this day of November
2024, by Jeffrey M. Gray, City Manager and Cynthia D. Means, City Clerk.

, Notary Public
Hillsdale County, Michigan
My Commission Expires:

Drafted by: When Recorded, Return To:
CITY OF JONESVILLE City of Jonesville

Jeffrey M. Gray, City Manager 265 E. Chicago Street

265 E. Chicago Street Jonesville, Ml 49250

Jonesville, Michigan 49250
(517) 849-2104



EXHIBIT A
Donated Land

PART OF LOT 32, "BRIAR HILLS NO. 2 SUBDIVISION" AS RECORDED IN LIBER 10,
PAGE 74-75, HILLSDALE COUNTY, MICHIGAN RECORDS, ALSO PART OF THE
SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 33, T5S-R3W, VILLAGE OF JONESVILLE, HILLSDALE
COUNTY, MICHIGAN, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 32; THENCE NO03°51'34"E
ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID LOT 32, A DISTANCE OF 177.98 FEET; THENCE
S78°12'11"E PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID LOT 32, A DISTANCE OF 240.00
FEET; THENCE S03°51'34"W, PARALLEL WITH SAID WEST LINE 177.98 FEET TO
SAID SOUTH LINE; THENCE N78°12'11"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE 240.00 FEET TO
THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 0.97 NET ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR
LESS, BEING SUBJECT TO ANY RECORDED OR UNRECORDED EASEMENTS OF
BURDEN OR BENEFIT.

NOTES:
1. BEARINGS BASED ON SOUTH LINE OF LOT 32 BEING N78°12'11"W PER
SHERIDAN SURVEYING CO. SURVEY, JOB # 2024.5287, DATED 8-21-24.

Park Parcel

The following described premises situated in the City of Jonesville, County of Hillsdale, and
State of Michigan, described as:

LOT 57 ALSO COM SELY COR LOT 57 TH ELY ALG SLY LN OF LOT 57 EXT 544.2 FT
TH NLY 305.6 FT TONLY LN OF LOT 57 EXT TH WLY ALG SD NLY LN 494.4 FT TO
NELY COR LOT 57 TH S 295.2 FT TO POB ALSO COM SE COR LOT 58 TH N 0°50'30"W
60.5 FT TO NE COR LOT 58 TH S 78°5620"E 168 FT ALG N LN LOT 58 EXT TH S
3°15'40"W 108 FT TH N 81°13'05"W 129 FT TH N 0°57'14"W 54.12 FT TH N 79°52'52"W 30
FT TO POB SUPERVISORS PLAT NO.1 SEC 33 T5S R3W CITY OF JONESVILLE



City Of . (517) 849-2104

(517) 849-9037 Fax

— et 1552.?_3—'4 JOﬂeSV]]le 265 E. Chicago Street, Jonesville, Ml 49250  www.jonesville.org

To: Jonesville City Council

From: Jeffrey M. Gray, City ManagerM

Date: October 11, 2024

Re: Manager Report and Recommendations — October 16, 2024 Council Meeting

**EXCERPT**

9.D. Resolution 2024-16 — Council Rules of Order [RoLL cALL][Action Item]
At the September 30™ training session, the second presenter recommended that the City Council
consider written rules of procedure, as referenced in Section 6.7 of the City Charter. A draft Rules of
Order is attached for Council review and discussion. The draft is based on a template that was provided
by the presenter and has been discussed with the Mayor and Personnel Committee. A brief summary:

* The rules feature meeting procedures, as described in the Charter (Article 2) and conduct of
meetings, including formal adoption of Roberts Rules of Order as the official parliamentary
procedure of Council (Article 3.01).

e Updated rules for the public to address Council are included in Article 3.11. The presenter
recommended changing the time to address Council from five minutes to three minutes; Council
will want to consider whether you want to make that change.

e  On consultation with the Mayor, the order of the meeting agenda has been changed to address
some of the presenter suggestions (Article 3.15).

e Decorum of Council, staff, and the public is also addressed (Article 3.16).

e Once the Rules are adopted, amendment would require a vote of 2/3 of the membership, or 5
votes in favor.

Council will want to review and discuss whether these proposed Rules of Order represent the rules that
you wish to operate under and whether you wish to take action at this time or at the November
meeting. A proposed resolution has been drafted if Council elects to take action at this time. A motion
and roll call vote would be necessary to adopt the resolution and Rules of Order. If further
consideration is desired, a motion to postpone to a later meeting date would be in order. Please refer to
Resolution 2024-16 and draft Rules of Order of the Jonesville City Council.



2024-16
CITY OF JONESVILLE
COUNTY OF HILLSDALE
STATE OF MICHIGAN
RESOLUTION - RULES OF ORDER OF THE JONESVILLE CITY COUNCIL

At a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of Jonesville, County of Hillsdale, and State of Michigan, held
at the Jonesville City Hall, 265 E. Chicago Street, in said City on the 20" day of November 2024, at 6:30 in the p.m.

PRESENT:
ABSENT:

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Council Member and supported by Council
Member

WHEREAS, Section 6.7 of the City Charter provides that the City Council shall determine its own
organization and rules of order of business; and

WHEREAS, the City Council attended, and all candidates for the office of Council were invited to attend, a
continuing education program on the proper conduct of public meetings on September 30, 2024; and

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to provide for an agreed set of Rules of Order to address the conduct
of meetings, including parliamentary procedure; order of business; decorum of members, staff, and the public

addressing Council; and the like.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Jonesville City Council does hereby adopt the attached
Rules of Order of the Jonesville City Council.

Upon a roll call vote, the following voted:
AYES: Members:
NAYS: Members:

ABSENT: Members:

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

Cynthia D. Means, Clerk

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a Resolution adopted by the City Council of the
City of Jonesville, County of Hillsdale and State of Michigan at a regular meeting held on the 20" day of November,
2024, and that public notice was given pursuant to Act 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, as amended, including in
the case of a special or rescheduled meeting notice by publication or posting at least eighteen (18) hours prior to the
time set for the meeting.

Cynthia D. Means, Clerk
Page 1 of 1



Rules of Order
of the
Jonesville City Council

Adopted
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Rules of Order
Jonesville City Council

Article 1. Scope and Authority

Section 6.7 of the Jonesville City Charter provides for the creation of these Rules of
Order. These rules shall govern City Council proceedings unless amended pursuant to
Article 4.03 of these rules, or suspended by a vote of five (5) Council Members. In any
cases of conflict, provisions of the Jonesville City Charter and State Law take
precedence.

Article 2. Meetings

All regular and special meetings of the City Council shall be open to the public and
conducted in accordance with the Open Meetings Act.

2.01 Regular Meetings
Regular meetings of the Jonesville City Council shall be held in the Council Chambers
at the Jonesville City Hall, 265 E. Chicago St., Jonesville, Michigan, on the third
Wednesday of each month at 6:30 p.m. unless otherwise provided by Charter or by
Council action. Meetings can be rescheduled with the approval of the majority of the
Council.

In accordance with the Open Meetings Act, the schedule of the regular meetings shall
be posted at City Hall and on the city website within 10 days after the first meeting of
the calendar year.

2.02 Special Meetings
A Special Meeting of the Council shall be called by the City Clerk upon the written
request from the Mayor or any three members of Council with at least 18 hours written
notice as required by Section 6.2 of the City Charter.

2.03 Work Sessions

(a) Upon the call of the Mayor or Council and with appropriate notice to
the Council members and the public, the Council may convene a work
session devoted entirely to the exchange of information related to
municipal affairs.

(b) No votes shall be taken on any matters under discussion nor shall any
Council member enter into a formal commitment with another Council
member regarding a vote to be taken subsequently.’

T These meetings are frequently less formal than regular Council meetings but are no less subject to alll
the provisions of the Open Meetings Act.

1 Jonesville City Council Rules of Order



2.04 Executive Sessions.

(a) The Council shall meet in executive (Closed) session only for those
purposes allowed by the open Meetings Act [Act 267, Michigan Public
Acts of 1967, as amended (MCL 15.261 et seq.; MSA 4.1800(11) et
sec)].

(b) A roll call vote of 2/3 of the Council members elected or appointed and
serving is required to call a closed session. The Council by majority
vote may adjourn a closed session or open the meeting to the public.

(c) Council members may deliberate during closed sessions, but shall not
make any decisions, determinations, actions, votes, or dispositions
upon a proposal, recommendation, resolution, order or ordinance in
closed session.

(d) A separate set of minutes of the closed session shall be taken by the
City Clerk or other such designated person taking minutes in the
closed session. These minutes shall be retained by the City Clerk, and
shall not be available to the public and shall only be disclosed if
required by a civil action filed under Section 10, 11, or 13 of the Open
Meetings Act. The minutes of a closed session may be destroyed one
year and one day after approval of the minutes of the regular meeting
at which the closed session was approved.

2.05 Organizational Meetings

(a) Section 3.6 of the City Charter requires that “the Council shall hold its
organizational meeting at the first regular meeting following the regular
city November...election. At this time, the council shall select a mayor
pro tem from its members."?

Article 3. Conduct of Business

3.01 Rules of Parliamentary Procedure

(a) The rules of parliamentary procedure as contained in the latest edition
of Roberts Rules of Order will provide the formal framework for the
conduct of business, and shall prevail in matters of parliamentary
procedure not otherwise addressed in these Rules of Order

(b) The Chair shall endeavor to conduct the meeting in a fashion that
reflects the informality and congeniality possible in a community the
size of Jonesville while also maintaining the decorum and formality
necessary to transact business in an orderly fashion.

2 The original text of the City Charter references “odd-year” elections. In September of 2014, Council
adopted Resolution 2014-14, which established even-year elections, pursuant to Public Act 523 of 2012.

2 Jonesville City Council Rules of Order



(c) The Chair shall preserve order and decorum and may speak to points
of order in preference to other Council members. The Chair shall
decide all questions arising under this parliamentary authority, subject
to appeal and reversal by a majority of the Council members present.

(d) Any member may appeal to the Council a ruling of the Chair. If the
appeal is seconded, the member making the appeal may briefly state
the reason for the appeal and the Chair may briefly state the ruling.
There shall be no debate on the appeal and no other member shall
participate tin the discussion. The question shall be, “Shall the ruling of
the Chair be sustained?” If the majority of the members vote “aye”, the
ruling of the Chair is sustained, otherwise it is overruled.

3.02 Conduct of Discussion

(a) During Council discussion and debate, no member shall speak until
recognized for that purpose by the Chair. After such recognition, the
member shall confine discussion to the question at hand and to its
merits and shall not be interrupted except by a point of order or
privilege by another member. Speakers should address their remarks
to the Chair, maintain a courteous tone and avoid interjecting a
personal note into debate.

(b) No member shall speak more than once on the same question unless
every member desiring to speak to that question shall have had the
opportunity to do so.

(c) The Chair, at his or her discretion, and subject to the appeal process
mentioned above may permit any person to address the Council during
its deliberations.3

3.03 Precedence of Motions

When a main motion is before the Council, other motions may not be entertained except
motions to: 1) adjourn; 2) recess; 3) table; 4) call the previous question (to limit debate —
requires a two-thirds vote); 5) refer to a committee; or 6) amend. These motions have
precedence in the order indicated.

3.04 Roll Call Vote

(a) In accordance with Section 6.7 of the City Charter, “A vote upon all
ordinances and resolutions shall be taken by ‘Yes’ and ‘No’ votes and
entered upon the record, except that where the vote is unanimous it
shall only be necessary to so state.”

(b) In all roll call votes, the names of the members shall be called in
revolving alphabetical order such that the person voting first on one
issue will be moved to the end of the rotation and vote last on the next.

3 While it is true that “only duly elected members should take part in debate”, Roberts Rules permits, and
practical consideration requires, that the Chair retain the prerogative to get input from any person he or
she deems necessary for the proper conduct of City business.

3 Jonesville City Council Rules of Order



(c) Once made and seconded each motion shall be put to a vote.

(d) The Chair shall announce the result of each vote, at which time the
result becomes official.

(e) The City Clerk or appropriately designated taker of the Minutes shall
record all motions and the results of all votes.

3.05 Duty to vote.

Election to a deliberative body carries with it the obligation to vote. Council members
present at a Council meeting shall vote on every matter before the body, unless
otherwise prohibited from voting by law.

3.06 Abstention From Voting*
Council action in this regard is governed by the City Charter, Section 6.7(d).

3.07 Conflict of Interest

A legitimate conflict of interest, as defined by law, shall be the sole reason for a Council
member to abstain from voting. Council action in this regard is governed by City
Charter, Section 6.7(c) and the separately adopted Conflict of Interest policy that
governs the actions of all city officials.

3.08 Reconsideration of a vote

(a) After the Chair announces a vote any member who voted on the
prevailing side may move for a reconsideration of the action at the
same or next succeeding meeting, provided, however, that a motion for
reconsideration is out of order if the action taken earlier had been
implemented or partially implemented.

(b) A motion for reconsideration does not require a second. If approved,
the effect is to place the original action before the Council for further
consideration, not to overrule the original decision.

3.09 Attendance

(a) Attendance by Council members at all regular and special meetings of
the City Council is expected. Council members are expected to notify
the Mayor or City Manager in advance if they cannot attend a meeting.

(b) Section 5.6 of the City Charter provides that a vacancy is deemed to
exist due to the “unexcused absence from four (4) consecutive regular
meetings of the council or twenty-five (25%) percent of such meetings
in any fiscal year.”

4 Although Robert’s Rules permits counting abstentions with the prevailing side, it is not universally
accepted and there is debate as to its propriety and its impact. Better to strictly observe Charter
requirements for voting on every issue and Charter provisions for abstentions only in the case of
legitimate, Council agreed upon conflicts of interest.

4 Jonesville City Council Rules of Order



(c) The following individuals shall attend all Council meetings unless
otherwise directed:

(i) Mayor and Council Members
(if) City Manager
(iii) City Attorney®
(iv) City Clerk
(v) Police Chief

3.10 Public Hearings

Public Hearings shall be scheduled by the City Council when required by law or
applicable regulations or when the City Council has determined that a matter for
consideration by the Council is of particular import, magnitude, and/or controversy as to
warrant the City Council’s request for public comments concerning the matter. Public
Hearings shall be held in an orderly fashion, the object of which is to ensure that every
person has an opportunity to have his comments heard.

(a) Public hearings generally will be scheduled by the City Council,
although some public hearings, when required by certain regulations,
may be scheduled by the City Manager. The City Manager will ensure
that appropriate notices of hearings shall be provided the public, with
statements that persons who wish to provide comments without
attending the public hearing may write or call the City Clerk with their
comments prior to the public hearing.

(b) Prior to opening the public hearing for public comments, the City
Manager may be asked to provide background information concerning
the matter for which the City Council will receive comments.

(c) The Mayor or the Chair of the meeting shall declare the public hearing
open and announce the procedure for receiving comments from the
public.

(d) Persons speaking during the public hearing will state their name and
home address for inclusion in the record of the public hearing, which
shall be included in the minutes of the regular or special City Council
meeting at which it was called.

(e) The Chair may establish time limits and procedures for persons who
provide comments at the public hearing.®

5 Clearly, the Mayor, Council members and City Manager must attend all meetings. It has also proven to
be useful and conducive to the efficient conduct of City business to have the City Attorney in attendance.
The City Clerk has traditionally been the taker of minutes. The Police Chief or designee serves as the
sergeant-at-arms. Other department heads need only attend when requested by the City Manager or
Council.

6 The Chair must, of course, take care not to discriminate with persons speaking at a public hearing. Any
“time limits and procedures” set by the Chair would pertain to any and all persons wishing to speak.

5 Jonesville City Council Rules of Order



(f) Written comments and the names and addresses of any persons calling
in comments shall be presented. The Chair may require that written
comments be read into the record, summarized, or reported as being
in favor of or in opposition to the proposal that is being considered.

(g) At the conclusion of receipt of comments from the public, and following
a report by the City Manager concerning persons who had called or
submitted written comments, the Chair will declare that the public
hearing is closed. The City Council, however may continue to discuss
the proposal.

(h) Action by the City Council that might be necessary at the conclusion of
the public hearing may be taken by the City Council immediately, either
by consideration of a resolution or an ordinance. Introductions of
proposed resolutions or ordinances may be deferred; actions upon
resolutions may be undertaken immediately or deferred; but action
upon ordinances may only be taken immediately if the ordinance was
introduced at the prior regularly scheduled meeting, or it is determined
to be an emergency ordinance within the meaning of Section 8.7 of the
City Charter.

3.11 Addressing the Council

(a) Each regular Council meeting agenda shall provide reserved time for
audience participation.

(b) When a person addresses the Council, he or she shall state his or her
name and home address.

(c) Remarks should be limited to matters before the Council, to Council
business or policy, or to issues of general concern that the Council has
the authority to recommend or act upon

(d) Persons addressing the Council shall limit their comments to not more
than three (3) minutes or other time limit set by the Chair. Persons
addressing the Council may have comments presented by other
individuals, but may not delegate additional speaking time to others.
The Clerk will maintain the official time and notify the speakers when
their time is up.

(e) Remarks shall be addressed to the Chair in a courteous tone. Persons
addressing Council who fail to conduct themselves with the decorum
described in Article 3.16(c) of these rules may be removed from the
meeting at the discretion of the Chair.

(f) No person shall have the right to speak more than once unless
additional opportunities are granted by the Chair.

(9) Council members and staff will generally not respond to audience
participation. Matters may be referred by the Council to the City
Manager who may also be directed to provide a report at a subsequent
meeting or date.

6 Jonesville City Council Rules of Order



3.12 Minutes

(a) The Clerk shall attend the regular and special meetings of the Council,
and shall record all the proceedings and resolutions of the Council in
accordance with the Open Meetings Act. In the absence of the Clerk,
the Council may appoint the Deputy Clerk or another person to
temporarily perform the Clerk’s duties.

(b) Proposed minutes shall be available for public inspection at the City
Hall within eight (8) business days after a meeting.

(c) Approved minutes shall be available for public inspection within five (5)
business days of the meeting at which they are approved.

(d) Minutes are intended to be a record of the actions of the City Council.
and shall contain:

(i) Starting time, date and location of the meeting.
(i) Attendance by members of the City Council, City Staff and others.
(iii) Summarize discussions of members of the Council and Staff.

(iv) Sequential number and summary of all resolutions and ordinances
that are finally acted upon by the Council.

(v) Atally of all votes taken in conjunction with actions of the City
Council.

(vi) Paraphrase of miscellaneous comments of Council members, city
staff and the public.”

(vii) The time of the meeting’s adjournment.

3.13 Quorum

A quorum is required for the conduct of any city business. A quorum is defined by
Section 6.5 of the Charter as “four (4) members of the Council”.

3.14 Agenda and Council Packet

(a) The City Manager, in consultation with the Mayor, shall prepare an
agenda for each City Council meeting.

7 Minutes are intended to be a record of what was done, more than what was said. However, action does
not take place in a vacuum, and a City Council meeting is not a sterile environment of motions and votes
taken. Comments of Council members, staff and the public often provide context and substance to the
skeleton of parliamentary proceedings, especially when viewed in historical perspective.
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(b) The City Manager shall cause the agenda, along with a packet
containing supporting documents or information the Manager believes
necessary and useful to be delivered to each Council member’s city-
issued email address or place of residence not later than the afternoon
of the Friday of the week before the meeting.

(c) All such meeting agenda materials shall be made available for
inspection by the public and the news media upon request, except for
any material that has been deemed by the City Manager, with the
concurrence of the City attorney, to be confidential in nature.

(d) Members of the Council may request that the City Manager include
items on the agendas of regular meetings of the Council.

3.15 Order of Agenda
a) Call to Order

b) Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence

c¢) Public Comment

d) Presentations and Recognitions

e) Approval of Council Minutes

f) Board and Commission Minutes

h) Unfinished Business

i) New Business
j) Accounts Payable

(

(

(

(

(

(

(g) Public Hearing and Council Action
(

(

(

(k) Department Reports
(

l) Adjourn

3.16 Decorum and Order

(a) Each member of Council shall be responsible for maintaining order and
decorum. Each member shall conduct himself or herself with dignity
befitting a public official, and shall maintain a courteous and polite
demeanor at all times. Members shall treat each other, staff, media
and members of the public with respect.

(b) Administrative Staff and employees shall also maintain order and
decorum. While maintaining order of the meeting resides with the
authority of the Chair, the City Manager shall also be responsible for
ensuring the orderly conduct of employees under his direction and
control.
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(c) Public shall maintain same rules of decorum propriety and good
conduct applicable to the members of Council. Any person making
personal or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous shall be
removed from the meeting if so directed by the Chair.

(d) Any member of the public may address the Council on any issue
during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. The person shall
state his or her name and address for recording in the public minutes.

(e) Any member of the public desiring to address the Council outside the
Public Comment portions of the agenda shall do so at the discretion of
the Chair and only upon being recognized by the Chair.8

Article 4. Miscellaneous

4.01 Tape Recording, Videotaping, Telecasting, Media

These actions are governed by Section 3 of the Open Meetings Act, and shall be
conducted in such a way as to maximize public access while minimizing disruption of
the proceedings.

4.02 Administrative Contact

Section 3.8 of the City Charter describes the limitations of, and conditions for, contact
between Council members and Staff.

4.03 Amendment of Rules Of Order

These Rules of Order may be amended by the City Council at any regular or special
meeting by a vote of five (5) of the members elect.

4.04 Severability

Any part of these Rules of Order which shall conflict with any state or federal law now or
in the future, or with the Charter of the City of Jonesville or any ordinance of the City
duly adopted now or in the future shall be null and void, but only to the extent of the
conflict. All other parts shall continue in full force and effect.

8 See Footnotes 3 and 6 above.
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B BAILEY, HODSHIRE
& COMPANY, PC.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

479 E. CHICAGO STREET PHONE: 517-849-2410
P.0.BOX 215 FAX: 517-849-2493
JONESVILLE, MI 49250 www.baileyhodshire.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the City Council
City of Jonesville
Jonesville, Michigan

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the City of Jonesville, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table
of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented
component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Jonesville, as of
June 30, 2024, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the
year then ended, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are required to be independent of the City of Jonesville and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the
financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in
the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City of Jonesville’s ability to continue as a going concern
for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may
raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
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material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than or one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements
are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City of Jonesville’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the City of Jonesville’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that
we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information pages 4 - 9 and pages 36 - 39 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although
not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Jonesville’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion, based on our audit and the
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report of the other auditors, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated,
in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 6, 2024,
on our consideration of the City of Jonesville’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting
and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed
in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City of Jonesville’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Bailey, Hodshire < Company, P.C.

Jonesville, Michigan
November 6, 2024



City of Jonesville, Michigan

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
For the year ended June 30, 2024

Introduction

This section of the annual financial report presents management’s discussion and analysis of the City’s financial
performance during the year ended June 30, 2024. Please read it in conjunction with the City’s financial
statements, which immediately follow this section.

Financial Highlights

e The City’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $15,922,421 (net position) at the close of this fiscal year. Net
position at the beginning of the fiscal year totaled $14,911,393, showing an increase of $1,011,028 during
the current year.

e The City’s governmental funds reported total ending fund balance of $4,809,749 of which $2,133,955 is
unassigned and unrestricted, and available for spending at the City’s discretion. This compares to the prior
year ending fund balance of $3,451,320 showing an increase of $1,358,429 during the current year.

e At the end of the current year, fund balance for the General Fund was $2,158,172 or 158% of General Fund
expenditures. This is an increase of $186,397 from last year’s ending fund balance of $1,971,775.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial statements. The basic financial
statements include: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the
financial statements. The City also includes in this report additional information to supplement the basic
financial statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements
The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the City’s
finances, similar to that found in private sector business.

Statement of Net Position - This statement presents information of all of the City’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference being reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as
a useful indicator as to whether the City’s financial condition as a whole is improving or deteriorating.

Statement of Activities - This report shows how the City’s net position changed during the fiscal year. All
current year revenues and expenses are included regardless of when the cash is received or paid. An
important purpose of this statement is to show the financial reliance of the City’s distinct activities or
functions on revenues provided by the taxpayers.

Both of the above statements distinguish governmental activities from business-type activities. Governmental
activities include general government, public safety, public services, zoning, and recreation, and are principally
supported by property taxes and revenues from other governments. Business-type activities include water and
sewer, and are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges.



City of Jonesville, Michigan

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
For the year ended June 30, 2024

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Fund accounting is used to ensure and demonstrate compliance
with finance-related legal requirements. All of the City’s funds can be divided into three categories:
governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental Funds are used to account for essentially the same functions as governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. However, these statements report short-term fiscal accountability
focusing on the use of expendable resources during the year and balances of expendable resources available
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s short-term
financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements,
it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented
for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better
understand the long-term impact of short-term financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenue, expenditures and changes in fund balances provide
reconciliations to the government-wide statements to assist in understanding the differences between these
two perspectives.

Budgetary comparison statements are included as required supplementary information for the general fund
and major special revenue funds. These statements and schedules demonstrate compliance with the City’s
adopted and final revised budget.

Proprietary Funds generally report services for which the City charges customers a fee. There are two
types of proprietary funds: Enterprise Funds and Internal Service Funds. Enterprise Funds are used to
report functions presented as business-type activities, while Internal Service Funds primarily service the
governmental unit and are included with governmental activities. The Water and Sewer Funds are
Enterprise Funds, and the Motor Vehicle Pool is an Internal Service Fund.

The Fiduciary Fund (Current Tax Collection Fund) is reported in the fiduciary fund financial statements,
but is excluded from the government-wide reporting. Fiduciary fund financial statements report resources
that are not available to fund City Programs.

Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of
the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information can be found immediately following the notes to the financial
statements. This information includes budgetary comparison statements for all major funds.

Other Supplementary Information includes statements for non-major governmental funds.

Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the City’s financial position. The
City’s assets exceeded its liabilities by $15,922,421 (net position) at the close of this fiscal year. Net position at
the beginning of the fiscal year totaled $14,911,393, showing an increase of $1,011,028 over the prior year.




City of Jonesville, Michigan
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
For the year ended June 30, 2024

The following table provides a summary of the City’s net position:

NET POSITION
Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024
Current Assets $ 3,916,984 $ 5654,110 $ 2,538,879 $ 2,829,408 $ 6,455,863 $ 8,483,518
Non-current Assets 5,832,113 6,087,614 8,206,111 7,956,314 14,038,224 14,043,928
Total Assets $ 9,749,097 $11,741,724 $10,744990 $ 10,785,722 $ 20,494,087 $ 22527,446
Current Liabilities $ 496,235 $ 739,047 $ 242816 $ 213,209 % 739,051 % 952,256
Non-current Liabilities 61,927 1,034,365 4,781,713 4,618,404 4,843,640 5,652,769
Total Liabilities $ 558,162 $ 1,773,412 $ 5024529 $ 4831613 $ 5582691 $ 6,605,025
Net Position:
Net Investment in
Capital Assets $ 5,775,740 $ 5,065,321 $ 3,157,157 $ 3,044,326 $ 8,932,897 $ 8,109,647
Restricted 1,479,545 2,651,577 92,790 120,534 1,572,335 2,772,111
Unrestricted 1,935,650 2,251,414 2,470,511 2,789,249 4,406,161 5,040,663
Total Net Position $ 9,190,935 $ 9,968,312 $ 5,720,458 $ 5,954,109 $ 14,911,393 $ 15,922,421

The City reported positive net position for governmental and business-type activities. Net position increased
$777,377 for governmental activities and $233,651 for business-type activities; therefore, the City’s overall
financial position improved during fiscal year 2024.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)

For the year ended June 30, 2024

The following table reflects the change in net position of the City’s governmental and business-type activities:

CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Program Revenue

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and Contributions

Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenue

Property Taxes

State Shared Revenue

Investment Income

Other

Gain (Loss) on Sale of Capital Assets

Total Revenue

Expenses

General Government

Public Safety

Economic & Community
Development

Public Works

Streets, Highways, Drains

Sanitation

Culture & Recreation
Interest on Long-Term Debt
Depreciation - Unallocated
Water Utility

Sewer Utility

Total Expenses

Excess (deficiency)

Transfers

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Governmental Activities

Business-type Activities

Primary Government

2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024
$ 186,868 $ 185972 $ 1154799 $ 11184233 $ 1341667 $ 1,370,205
561,465 687,044 25,000 25,000 586,465 712,044

0 415,602 0 0 0 415,602

824,172 867,022 0 0 824,172 867,022
281,564 281,434 0 0 281,564 281,434
145,504 223,904 101,398 141,828 246,992 365,732
32,104 30,062 52,264 60,688 84,368 90,750
(24,558) 0 0 0 (24,558) 0

$ 2,007,200 $ 2,691,040 $ 1333461 $ 1411749 $ 3340670 $ 4,102,789
$ 634578 $ 706819 $ 0 $ 0 $ 634578 $ 706,819
495,129 506,318 0 495,129 506,318
11,615 4,639 0 0 11,615 4,639
100,830 98,839 0 0 100,830 98,839
492,119 412,928 0 0 492,119 412,928
14,466 9,780 0 0 14,466 9,780
100,784 109,013 0 0 100,784 109,013
6,445 1,867 0 0 6,445 1,867
48,762 50,325 0 0 48,762 50,325

0 0 469,640 460,402 469,640 460,402

0 0 766,307 730,831 766,307 730,831

$ 1904728 $ 1,900528 $ 1235947 $ 1191233 $ 3,140,675 $ 3,091,761
$ 102481 $ 790512 $ 97514 $ 220516 $ 199995 $ 1,011,028
68,328 (13,135) (68,328) 13,135 0 0

$ 170,809 $ 777,377 $ 29186 $ 233651 $ 199995 $ 1,011,028

Governmental Activities increased the City’s net position by $777,377. This represents an increase from last

year’s change in net position.

Revenues from governmental activities totaled $2,691,040. Property tax revenue represented the largest portion
of those revenues (32.2%), state shared revenue was 10.4%, and investment income was 8.3%.

The largest components of governmental activities’ expenses were general government (37.2%), public safety
(26.6%), and streets, highways, and drains (21.7%).
Administration, Motor Vehicle Pool, etc. Public safety includes police and fire.

General government consists of City Council,

Business-type Activities increased the City’s net position by $233,651. Net position will be used to repay debt
on the sewer and water improvements, as well as to plan for future improvements in the water and sewer

systems.



City of Jonesville, Michigan

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A)
For the year ended June 30, 2024

Governmental Funds - The focus of the City’s governmental funds is to provide information on short-term
inflows, outflows, and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the City’s
financing requirements. In particular, unrestricted fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a
government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year. As of June 30, 2024, the City’s
governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $4,809,749. Of this total, approximately 44.4%
was unrestricted and unassigned, indicating availability for continuing City service requirements. Although a
substantial amount is unrestricted, future plans include street repairs, park and cemetery improvements, and
other projects.

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the City. At the end of the current fiscal year, the General
Fund showed a healthy fund balance of $2,158,172, representing an increase of $186,397. Other Major
Governmental Funds include Major and Local Streets. Non-major governmental funds include the State
Highway and Debt Service funds. The Major Street Fund experienced a decrease of $80,100 in fund balance.
The Local Street Fund experienced an increase of $229,153 in fund balance.

Proprietary Funds - The proprietary fund statements share the same focus as the government-wide statements,
reporting both short-term and long-term information about financial status. The City’s proprietary funds consist
of the Water Fund, Sewer Fund, and the Motor Vehicle Pool. Total net position of the Water and Sewer Funds
was $5,954,109 at June 30, 2024, an increase of $233,651 from the previous fiscal year. The Motor Vehicle
Pool’s net position at the end of this fiscal year was $951,146, an increase of $47,033 from the previous fiscal
year.

Major Governmental Funds Budgeting and Operating Highlights

General Fund — The difference between the original and final amended budget for General Fund revenues was
$819,000 ($2,522,083 vs. $1,703,083). The decrease between the appropriations originally budgeted and the
final appropriations budget was $835,420 ($2,247,693 vs. $1,412,273). There were minor increases in City
Council, City Manager, Elections, Treasurer, Assessor, Data Processing, Fringe Benefits, Fire Department,
Public Works, Street Lighting, Landfill, Recreation, Parks, and Rail Trail. Capital Outlay was $81,456, which
included the following: Police and Fire Department parking lot chip and seal ($20,475), Fire Department
generator ($12,551), Police, DPW, and Wastewater computer replacement ($5,382), City Hall/Council
furnishings ($17,092), Police radios ($8,190), Fire Department equipment upgrades and truck repairs ($12,965),
Carl Fast Park tire swing and concrete ($3,651), and Downtown traffic signal replacement final bill ($1,150).

Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital assets at year-end were as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Primary Government
2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024
Land $ 189,255 $ 189,255 $ 2,061 $ 2,061 $ 191,316 $ 191,316
Construction in Progress $ 0 $ 0 3 0 $ 0 0 0
Land Improvements 194,962 215,437 0 0 194,962 215,437
Buildings and Improvements 1,428,406 1,440,957 0 0 1,428,406 1,440,957
Facilities and Mains 0 0 17,320,552 17,447,901 17,320,552 17,447,901
Furniture and Equipment 1,277,841 1,335,503 1,063,848 1,088,269 2,341,689 2,423,772
Vehicles 1,694,719 1,621,230 0 0 1,694,719 1,621,230
Infrastructure 7,146,512 7,799,983 0 0 7,146,512 7,799,983
Less: Acc. Depreciation (6,099,582) (6,514,751)  (10,287,841)  (10,702,450) (16,387,423) (17,217,201)
Total Capital Assets, Net
Of Depreciation $ 5832113 ¢ 6,087614 $ 8098620 $ 7835781 $ 13,930,733 $ 13,923,395
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Bonds and contracts outstanding at year-end were as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Primary Government
2023 2024 2023 2024 2023 2024
General Government $ 56,000 $ 1,000,000 $ 0 $ 0 3 56,000 $ 1,000,000
Revenue Bonds 0 0 2,474,528 2,434,528 $ 2,474,528 2,434,528
General Obligation Bonds 0 0 2,475,000 2,350,000 2,475,000 2,350,000

Total Long-Term Debt $ 56,000 $ 1,000,000 $ 4949528 $ 4,784528 $ 5005528 $ 5,784,528

Factors Bearing on the City’s Future

The City will continue to experience retirement of its senior staff. This trend will impact various components of
recruitment. These include assuring that wages and benefits remain competitive with the market, and that the
City invest in training and licensing so that staff is prepared for promotion and additional responsibilities.
Collaboration between management and Council will be critical to assure that a positive work culture is
maintained, as well.

While assuring competitive benefits, the City is exploring options to address the increasing costs of health care.
These include costs associated with changes in the workforce, such as additional family coverages. A
municipal consortium will lead to improved offerings and more affordable increases over time.

Infrastructure investments, including clean, safe water will remain a priority. By state and federal mandate,
privately-owned galvanized water services will be replaced throughout the City. The total project cost is
estimated at more than $2 million and will be completed over 10-20 years. The first phases were completed
with street projects in FY 2023-24 and 2024-25, utilizing more than $200,000 in American Rescue Plan Act
funds. The City has received an approximately $300,000 Technical, Managerial, and Financial (TMF) grant
from the Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes, and Energy (EGLE) for field exploration of
publicly- and privately-owned water infrastructure, public education, and project execution.

The Downtown Development Authority (DDA) will be engaged in transformational projects in the Downtown,
including a “road diet” and streetscape improvement project for the US-12 corridor in 2025. The project will be
completed in conjunction with the Michigan Department of Transportation (MDOT) and is supported by a
Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) grant. In addition, the City Council and DDA have worked
cooperatively to negotiate a development agreement with a local developer for new investment in the site of the
former Klein Tool Building. It is hoped that this project will add additional retail and housing space to the
Downtown, activate the riverfront, and provide important tax base.

Staff continues to note impacts on availability, lead time, and cost of parts and equipment in all Departments.
These trends will warrant careful monitoring for their potential impacts on future year budgeting and project
execution.

Contacting the City’s Financial Management

This report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Jonesville’s finances. Questions or
comments concerning any of the information provided in this report should be addressed to Jeff Gray, City
Manager, or Lenore Spahr, Finance Director/Treasurer, City of Jonesville, 265 East Chicago St, Jonesville, Ml
49250.




CITY OF JONESVILLE
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2024

Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,066,167 $ 67577 $ 1,133,744 % 17,790
Investments 4,339,956 2,672,555 7,012,511 3,794,330
Accounts Receivable 39,642 35,257 74,899 0
Internal Balances 988 37,357 38,345 0
Due from Other Governmental Units 101,880 0 101,880 0
Inventory 5,787 8,500 14,287 0
Prepaid Expense 99,690 8,162 107,852 39
Total Current Assets $ 5654110 $ 2829408 $ 8483518 $ 3,812,159
Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets - Not Depreciated $ 189,255 $ 2,061 $ 191,316 $ 97,544
Other Capital Assets - Net of Depreciation 5,898,359 7,833,719 13,732,078 0
Restricted Investments 0 120,534 120,534 0
Total Noncurrent Assets $ 6087614 $ 7956314 $ 14,043928 $ 97,544
Total Assets $ 11,741,724 $ 10,785,722 $ 22527446 $ 3,909,703
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 497,103  $ 27,329  $ 524,432  $ 8,488
Internal Balances 37,357 988 38,345 0
Accrued Payroll 13,343 4,281 17,624 1,362
Customer Deposits 0 200 200 0
Interest Payable 0 13,411 13,411 0
Unearned Revenue 146,244 0 146,244 623
Current Portion of Long-Term Debt 45,000 167,000 212,000 0
Total Current Liabilities $ 739,047 % 213209 % 952,256  $ 10,473
Noncurrent Liabilities
Bonds Payable (net of premiums & discounts) $ 977,293 $ 4611043 $ 5588336 $ 0
Compensated Absences 57,072 7,361 64,433 0
Total Noncurrent Liabilities $ 1034365 $ 4618404 $ 5652,769 $ 0
Total Liabilities $ 1773412 $ 4831613 $ 6,605025 3 10,473
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 5065321 $ 3,044,326 $ 8109647 $ 97,544
Restricted for:
Streets 2,651,577 0 2,651,577 0
RD Bond Covenants 0 120,534 120,534 0
Unrestricted 2,251,414 2,789,249 5,040,663 3,801,686
Total Net Position $ 9968312 $ 5954109 $ 15922421 $ 3,899,230

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF JONESVILLE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Program Revenues
Operating Grants ~ Capital Grants

Charges for and and Net (Expense)
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 706,819 $ 72,797  $ 274,387  $ 0o 3 (359,635)
Public Safety 506,318 96,580 0 0 (409,738)
Economic and
Community Development 4,639 0 0 0 (4,639)
Public Works 98,839 0 0 0 (98,839)
Streets, Highways, and Drains 412,928 0 392,661 415,602 395,335
Sanitation 9,780 0 0 0 (9,780)
Culture and Recreation 109,013 16,595 19,996 0 (72,422)
Interest on Long-Term Debt 1,867 0 0 0 (1,867)
Depreciation - Unallocated* 50,325 0 0 0 (50,325)
Total Governmental Activities $ 1900528 $ 185972 $ 687,044 $ 415602 $ (611,910)
Business-type Activities:
Water $ 460,402 $ 364,549 $ 25,000 $ 0 3 (70,853)
Sewer 730,831 819,684 0 0 88,853
Total Business-type Activities $ 1191233 $ 1,184233 $ 25,000 $ 0 $ 18,000
Total Primary Government $ 3091761 $ 1,370,205 $ 712,044  $ 415602 $ (593,910)
Component Units:
Downtown Development Authority $ 152,717  $ 0 s 0 3 0 s (152,717)
Local Development Finance Authority 96,220 0 0 0 (96,220)
Total Component Units $ 248937 $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ (248,937)
Primary Government
Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

Change in Net Position:
Net (Expense) Revenue $ (611,910) $ 18,000 $ (593,910) $ (248,937)

General Revenue:
Property Taxes Levied

for General Purposes $ 867,022 $ 0 $ 867,022 $ 0
Property Taxes Captured 0 0 0 599,640
State Shared Revenue 281,434 0 281,434 0
Investment Income 223,904 141,828 365,732 190,551
Miscellaneous 30,062 60,688 90,750 24,842

Total General Revenue $ 1402422 $ 202516 $ 1,604,938 $ 815,033

Excess (deficiency) $ 790,512 % 220516 $ 1,011,028 $ 566,096
Transfers 73,392 (73,392) 0 0
(86,527) 86,527 0 0

Change in Net Position $ 777377 $ 233651 $ 1,011,028 $ 566,096

Net Position — Beginning 9,190,935 5,720,458 14,911,393 3,333,134
Net Position — Ending $ 9968312 $ 5954109 $ 15922421 $ 3,899,230

This amount does not include depreciation that is reported in the direct expenses of the various programs

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF JONESVILLE
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2024

Capital Other Total
Projects Major Local Governmental Governmental
General Fund Streets Streets Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash $ 63,246 $ 942,172 2,568 34,745 $ 21,342 $ 1,064,073
Investments 2,470,450 0 733,277 952,858 0 4,156,585
Taxes & Accounts Receivable 38,464 0 0 1,178 0 39,642
Due from Other Funds 34,521 0 0 5,464 0 39,985
Due from Other Governmental Units 45,508 0 42,907 13,465 0 101,880
Inventory 5,787 0 0 0 0 5,787
Prepaid Expenditures 18,430 80,121 0 0 0 98,551
Total Assets $ 2676,406 3 1,022,293 778,752 1,007,710 $ 21,342 $ 5,506,503
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 351,202 % 0 109,542 31,234 $ 1,478  $ 493,456
Due to Other Funds 8,156 0 35,677 2 0 43,835
Salaries Payable 12,632 0 250 172 165 13,219
Unearned Revenue 146,244 0 0 0 0 146,244
Total Liabilities $ 518,234  $ 0 145,469 31,408 $ 1,643 $ 696,754
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable $ 24217  $ 0 0 0o $ 0 3 24,217
Restricted 0 1,022,293 633,283 976,302 19,699 2,651,577
Committed 0 0 0 0 0 0
Assigned 0 0 0 0 0 0
Unassigned 2,133,955 0 0 0 0 2,133,955
Total Fund Balances $ 2,158,172 $ 1,022,293 633,283 976,302 19,699 4,809,749
Total Liabilities and Fund Balances $ 2676406 $ 1,022,293 778,752 1,007,710 $ 21,342 $ 5,506,503

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF JONESVILLE
Reconciliation of Fund Balances on the Balance Sheet
for Governmental Funds to Net Position of
Governmental Activities on the Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2024

Fund Balances - total governmental funds $ 4,809,749
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Add: Capital assets 12,602,365
Deduct: Accumulated depreciation (6,514,751)

An Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge the

cost of equipment and vehicle usage to individual funds. Assets

and liabilities of the Internal Service Fund are included in governmental
activities in the statement of net position.

Add: Internal Service Fund current assets 187,582
Deduct: Internal Service Fund current liabilities (37,268)

Certain liabilities, such as bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the funds.

Deduct: Bonds and notes payable (2,000,000)
Add: Bond discount 14,134
Deduct: Bond premium (36,427)
Deduct: Accrued interest on bonds and notes payable 0
Deduct: Compensated absences (57,072)
Net position of governmental activities $ 9,968,312

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUE
Property Taxes
Licenses and Permits
State Shared Revenue
Grants
Charges and Fees
State Highway Contract
Recreation
Rents and Royalties
Cemetery Revenue
Contributions
Interest
Contributions from Component Units
Miscellaneous

Total Revenue

EXPENDITURES

General Government

Public Safety

Economic & Community Development
Public Works

Streets, Highways, and Drains
Sanitation

Culture and Recreation

Capital Outlay
Debt Service

Principal
Interest
Total Expenditures

REVENUE OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES

CITY OF JONESVILLE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Capital Other Total
Projects Major Local Governmental Governmental
General Fund Streets Streets Funds Funds
$ 900,979 0 $ 0 $ 0 0 $ 900,979
1,995 0 0 0 0 1,995
281,434 0 275,955 86,595 0 643,984
111,529 0 415,602 0 0] 527,131
102,576 0 0 0 0 102,576
0 0 0 0 29,184 29,184
36,591 0 0 0 0 36,591
22,729 0 0 0 0 22,729
30,848 0 0 0 0 30,848
7,067 0 0 0 0 7,067
140,285 0 32,462 51,154 3 223,904
97,551 0 0 0 58,240 155,791
7,334 0 0 927 0 8,261
$ 1,740,918 0 $ 724,019 $ 138,676 87,427 $ 2,691,040
$ 675,603 0 3 0 3 0 0 $ 675,603
416,127 0 0 0 0 416,127
4,639 0 0 0 0 4,639
49,444 0 0 0 0 49,444
35,708 0 793,444 78,065 25,671 932,888
9,780 0 0 0 0 9,780
86,061 0 0 0 0 86,061
81,456 0 0 0 0 81,456
0 0 0 0 56,000 56,000
0 0 0 0 2,240 2,240
$ 1,358,818 0 $ 793,444 % 78,065 83911 % 2,314,238
$ 382,100 0 $ (69,425) $ 60,611 3516 $ 376,802

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Bond Proceeds
Bond Premium
Bond Discount
Operating Transfers In
Operating Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES
FUND BALANCES - Beginning
FUND BALANCES - Ending

CITY OF JONESVILLE
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
(continued)

Capital Other Total
Projects Major Local Governmental Governmental

General Fund Streets Streets Funds Funds
$ 0 3 1,000,000 0 $ 0 0 1,000,000
0 36,427 0 0 0 36,427
0 (14,134) 0 0 0 (14,134)
168,888 0 3,567 246,224 0 418,679
(364,591) 0 (14,242) (77,682) (2,830) (459,345)
$ (195,703) $ 1,022,293 (10,675) $ 168,542 (2,830) 981,627
$ 186,397  $ 1,022,293 (80,100) $ 229,153 686 1,358,429
1,971,775 0 713,383 747,149 19,013 3,451,320
$ 2,158,172  $ 1,022,293 633,283 $ 976,302 $ 19,699 4,809,749

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF JONESVILLE
Reconciliation of Statement of Revenue, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds $

1,358,429

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures, however, in
the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

Add: Capital outlay
Deduct: Depreciation expense

An Internal Service Fund is used by management to charge the cost of
equipment and vehicle usage to individual funds. Net revenue of the
Internal Service Fund of (before depreciation) is reported

with governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds
in the period issued, but issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the
statement of net position. Repayment of debt principal is an expenditure in
the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in
the statement of net position.

Subtract: Issuance of long-term debt

Add: Bond discount

Deduct: Bond premium

Add: Principal payments on long-term debt

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use
of current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in the funds.

Add: Decrease in interest payable on long-term liabilities
Deduct: Increase in accrual for compensated absences

730,126
(488,658)

138,545

(1,000,000)
14,134

(36,427)
56,000

373
4,855

Change in net position of governmental activities $

777,377

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF JONESVILLE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash
Investments
Accounts Receivable
Due from Other Funds
Inventory
Prepaid Expense
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets - Not Depreciated
Other Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation
Restricted Investments - RD Bond Reserve
Restricted Investments - RD Repair, Replacement
& Improvement
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
Accrued Payroll
Due to Other Funds
Customer Deposits
Total Current Liabilities
Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets
Accrued Interest Payable
Bonds Payable - Current
Total Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets

Noncurrent Liabilities
Bonds Payable
Bond Discount
Compensated Absences
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted by RD Bond Covenants:
Bond Reserve
Repair, Replacement, & Improvement
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Total Internal

Enterprise Funds Enterprise Service

Water Sewer Funds Funds
$ 54648 $ 12929 % 67,577 2,084
885,458 1,787,097 2,672,555 183,371
10,804 24,453 35,257 0
35,653 1,704 37,357 988
5,824 2,676 8,500 0
601 7,561 8,162 1,139
$ 992,988 $ 1,836,420 $ 2,829,408 187,582
$ 2,061 $ 0 $ 2,061 0
3,215,643 4,618,076 7,833,719 800,832
65,502 0 65,502 0
55,032 0 55,032 0
$ 3,338,238 4,618,076 $ 7,956,314 800,832
$ 4,331,226 6,454,496 $ 10,785,722 088,414
$ 11,309 % 16,020 $ 27,329 3,647
1,187 3,094 4,281 124
988 0 988 33,497
100 100 200 0
$ 13584 $ 19,214 % 32,798 37,268
$ 13,411  $ 0 3 13,411 0
42,000 125,000 167,000 0
$ 55,411 $ 125,000 $ 180,411 0
$ 2392528 $ 2,225000 $ 4,617,528 0
0 (6,485) (6,485) 0
1,386 5,975 7,361 0
$ 2393914 $ 2224490 $ 4,618,404 0
$ 2462909 $ 2,368,704 $ 4,831,613 37,268
$ 769,765 $ 2,274561 $ 3,044,326 800,832
65,502 0 65,502 0
55,032 0 55,032 0
978,018 1,811,231 2,789,249 150,314
$ 1,868,317 $ 4,085792 $ 5,954,109 951,146

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF JONESVILLE

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

OPERATING REVENUE
Sales
Equipment Rental
Sale of Capital Assets
Other
Total Operating Revenue

OPERATING EXPENSES
Sewage Disposal
Water Plant Operation
Water Distribution Expenses
Depreciation
Motor Vehicle Expense
Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NON-OPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Interest Income
Interest Expense
Total Non-operating Revenue (Expense)

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
Contributions from Other Governments
Contributions from Component Units
Grants
Transfers From Other Funds
Transfers To Other Funds

Total Contributions and Transfers
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION — Beginning
NET POSITION - Ending

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Total Internal

Enterprise Funds Enterprise Service

Water Sewer Funds Funds
$ 360,099 $ 815375 $ 1,175,474 0
4,450 4,309 8,759 105,192

0 0 0 9,200

41,034 19,654 60,688 0

$ 405583 $ 839,338 $ 1,244,921 114,392
$ 0 $ 378590 $ 378,590 0
145,164 0 145,164 0
73,423 0 73,423 0
164,694 249,915 414,609 91,512

0 0 0 73,957

$ 383281 $ 628505 $ 1,011,786 165,469
$ 22,302 $ 210,833 $ 233,135 (51,077)
$ 52,885 $ 88,943 $ 141,828 6,852
(77,121) (102,326) (179,447) 0

$ (24,236) $ (13,383) $ (37,619) 6,852
$ (1,934) $ 197450 $ 195516 (44,225)
$ 0 $ 0 $ 0 13,727
25,000 0 25,000 0

0 0 0 50,000

86,527 0 86,527 36,273
(34,696) (38,696) (73,392) (8,742)

$ 76,831 $ (38,696) $ 38,135 91,258
$ 74897 $ 158,754 $ 233,651 47,033
1,793,420 3,927,038 5,720,458 904,113
$ 1868317 $ 4085792 $ 5,954,109 951,146
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CITY OF JONESVILLE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Total Internal
Enterprise Service
Water Sewer Funds Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers $ 324209 $ 809,979 $ 1,134,188 $ 0
Cash received from interfund services provided 0 0 0 113,404
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (137,763) (265,039) (402,802) (97,585)
Cash payments to employees and
professional contractors for services (75,733) (139,785) (215,518) (23,954)
Other operating receipts 41,035 19,654 60,689 0
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities $ 151,748 $ 424809 $ 576,557 $ (8,135)
CASH FLOWS FROM NON-CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Contributions from other governments $ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 13,728
Contributions from component units 25,000 0 25,000 0
Grants 0 0 0 50,000
Transfers from other funds 86,527 0 86,527 36,273
Transfers to other funds (34,696) (38,696) (73,392) (8,742)
Net cash provided (used) by non-capital financing activities $ 76,831 $ (38,696) $ 38,135 $ 91,259
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and construction of capital assets $ (91,220) $ (45,850) $ (137,070) $  (14,033)
Principal paid on bonds and loans (40,000) (125,000) (165,000) 0
Interest paid on bonds and loans (77,330) (101,826) (179,156) 0
Net cash provided (used) by capital and
related financing activities $ (208,550) $  (272,676) $ (481,226) $  (14,033)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income $ 52,885 $ 88,943 $ 141,828 $ 6,852
Net cash provided (used) by investment activities $ 52,885 $ 88,943 §$ 141,828 $ 6,852
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH $ 72,914 % 202,380 $ 275294  $ 75,943
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Beginning 987,726 1,597,646 2,585,372 109,512
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - Ending $ 1060640 $ 1,800,026 $ 2,860,666 $ 185,455

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET

CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating income (loss) $ 22302 % 210,833 $ 233,135 % (51,077)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to

net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

Depreciation 164,494 249,915 414,409 91,512
Changes in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (4,687) (8,001) (12,688) 0
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds (35,653) (1,704) (37,357) (988)
(Increase) decrease in inventories (105) (300) (405) 0
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense 7,162 311 7,473 (134)
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (3,541) (30,451) (33,992) (80,744)
Increase (decrease) in wages and benefits payable 80 1,530 1,610 (201)
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds 981 0 981 33,497
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits 0 0 0 0
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 515 2,676 3,191 0
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 151548 $ 424809 $ 576,357 $ (8,135)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF JONESVILLE
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2024

Custodial Fund

Current Tax

Collection
ASSETS
Cash $ 10
LIABILITIES
Due to General Fund $ 10
NET POSITION $ 0

CITY OF JONESVILLE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Custodial Fund

Current Tax
Collection
ADDITIONS
Collection of taxes for City of Jonesville and other governments $ 3,373,256
DEDUCTIONS
Payment of taxes collected to City of Jonesville and other governments 3,373,256
Net change in fiduciary net position $ 0
NET POSITION - Beginning 0
NET POSITION - Ending $ 0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF JONESVILLE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
COMPONENT UNITS
JUNE 30, 2024

Total
Component
DDA LDFA Units
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash $ 15,102 $ 2,688 $ 17,790
Investments 109,479 3,684,851 3,794,330
Prepaid Expense 39 0 39
Total Current Assets 3 124620 $ 3687539 $ 3,812,159
Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets
Land $ 0 $ 97,544 $ 97,544
Total Noncurrent Assets $ 0 $ 97,544 % 97,544
Total Assets $ 124,620 $ 3,785,083 $ 3,909,703
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 327 % 944 % 1,271
Due to Primary Government 7,217 0 7,217
Unearned Revenue 0 623 623
Accrued Payroll 0 1,362 1,362
Total Liabilities $ 7,544 $ 2,929 $ 10,473
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 0 $ 97,544 $ 97,544
Unrestricted 117,076 3,684,610 3,801,686
Total Net Position $ 117,076 $ 3,782,154 $ 3,899,230

See Note 1 for descriptions of component units shown in column headings

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF JONESVILLE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
COMPONENT UNITS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Total
Component
DDA LDFA Units
EXPENSES
Downtown Development $ 37979 % 0 S 37,979
Industrial Development 0 30,167 30,167
Contributions to City activities 114,738 66,053 180,791
Total Expenses $ 152,717 $ 96,220 $ 248,937
PROGRAM REVENUE
Charges for Services $ 0 3 0 s 0
Operating Grants and Contributions 0 0 0
Capital Grants and Contributions 0 0 0
Total Program Revenue $ 0 $ 0 $ 0
NET (EXPENSE) REVENUE $  (152,717) % (96,220) $  (248,937)
GENERAL REVENUE
Property Taxes Captured $ 181,292 % 418,348 % 599,640
Rent Income 0 24,842 24,842
Investment Income 3,963 186,588 190,551
Other Income 0 0 0
Total General Revenue $ 185,255 $ 629,778 $ 815,033
CHANGE IN NET POSITION $ 32,538 $ 533,558 $ 566,096
NET POSITION — Beginning 84,538 3,248,596 3,333,134
NET POSITION - Ending $ 117,076 $ 3,782,154 $ 3,899,230

See Note 1 for descriptions of component units shown in column headings

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF JONESVILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The City of Jonesville comprises a population of approximately 2,176 residents in Hillsdale County, Michigan.
It is governed by a seven-member council with a Mayor as its head. As required by generally accepted
accounting principles, these financial statements present the City’s primary government and component units
over which the City exercises significant influence. Significant influence or accountability is based primarily
on operational or financial relationship with the City (as distinct from legal relationships).

The following component units are reported in the City’s financial statements:

e The Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) was created under Public Act 281 of 1986 of the
State of Michigan. The LDFA's purpose is to work towards the elimination of the causes of
unemployment, underemployment and joblessness, and to promote economic growth in the City of
Jonesville.

e The Downtown Development Authority (DDA) was created under Public Act 197 of 1975 of the State of
Michigan. The DDA's purpose is to eliminate the causes of deterioration of property values in the
business district of the City and to promote economic growth.

The City appoints the majority of the Boards of Directors of the LDFA and DDA. The budgets of both entities
require the City's approval, and their main revenue source (tax increment financing) is a financial burden to the
City.

The accounting policies of the City of Jonesville conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as applicable to governmental units. The following is a summary of
significant accounting policies used by City of Jonesville:

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements - The statement of net position and the statement of activities display
financial information about the City as a whole, excluding fiduciary activities. The primary government and
component units are presented separately within the financial statements with the focus on the primary
government. Individual funds are not displayed, but the statements distinguish governmental activities,
generally supported by property taxes and City general revenue, from business-type activities, generally
financed in whole or in part with fees charged to external customers.

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
function of the City’s governmental and business-type activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically
associated with a service, program or department and are therefore clearly identifiable to a particular function.
Program revenues include charges paid by the recipient of the goods or services offered by the function and
grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular
function. Property taxes, State Revenue Sharing, and other items not properly included among program
revenues are reported as general revenues. The comparison of direct expenses with program revenues identifies
the extent to which each governmental function is self-financing or draws from the general revenues of the City.

Fund Financial Statements - Fund financial statements report detailed information about the City. The focus of
governmental fund financial statements is on major funds rather than reporting funds by type. Each major fund
is presented in a separate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and presented in a single column. Fiduciary
funds are reported by fund type.
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CITY OF JONESVILLE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the City are prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
(GAAP) and all relevant pronouncements of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

The government-wide statements are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual
basis of accounting including the reclassification or elimination of internal activity (between or within funds).
However, internal eliminations do not include utility services provided to City departments. Proprietary fund
and component unit financial statements also report using this same focus and basis of accounting. Revenue is
recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the
related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have
been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus
and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenue is recognized as soon as it is both measureable and
available. Revenue is considered to be available if it is to be collected within the current period or soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenue to be
available if it is collected within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are
recorded when the liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures,
expenditures relating to compensated absences, and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is
due.

Under the modified accrual basis, property taxes, State revenue sharing, interest, and grants are considered to
be both measurable and available at fiscal year-end. Grants and entitlements received before the eligibility
requirements are met are recorded as deferred revenue.

Operating income reported in proprietary fund financial statements includes revenue and expenses related to
the primary, continuing operations of the fund. Principal operating revenue for proprietary funds is charges to
customers for sales or services. Principal operating expenses are the costs of providing goods or services and
include administrative expenses and depreciation of capital assets. Other revenue and expenses are classified
as non-operating in the fin